ROBERT LEE ISD

FINANCIAL/ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES MANUAL

2020-2021

UPDATED 2020-2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Contents

1.0 Introduction	3
2.0 Organization	4
3.0 Internal Controls	5
Business Office	6
Human Resources Department	7
Business Manager/Superintendent	7
4.0 Financial Management System	8
Cost Principles	12
Allowable Costs	12
Reasonable Costs	12
Allocable Costs	12
5.0 Overview of the Financial Management/Accounting System	12
6.0 Budgeting	14
7.0 Accounting Records	22
8.0 Spending Grant Funds	24
9.0 Program-Specific Fiscal Compliance	58
10.0 Cash Management	59
11.0 Timely Obligation of Funds	64
12.0 Program Income 2 CFR 200.307	68
13.0 Procurement System	69
13.2.1 Purchasing Procedures	70
14.0 Federal Procurement System Standards	91
15.0 Contract Administration	96
15.1 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, ar	nd Voluntary
Exclusion	99
15.2 Lobbying Certification	99
16.0 Property Management Systems	101_Toc466375308
17.0 Inventory Procedure	102
18.0 Written Compensation Policies	107

19.0	Record Keeping	115
20.0	Self-Monitoring and Audit Resolution	121
21.0	Questions to Consider When Determining Allowability of Cost with Federal Funds	121
22.0	State Programs – Program Allocations	123
23.0	Legal Authorities and Helpful Resources	124
24.0	Roles and Responsibilities	125
24.0	APPENDIXES	126

1.0 Introduction

This manual sets forth the policies and procedures used by Robert Lee ISD (the "LEA") to administer federal funds. The manual contains the internal controls and grant management standards used by the LEA to ensure that all federal funds are lawfully expended. It describes in detail the LEA's financial management system, including cash management procedures, procurement policies; inventory management protocols; procedures for determining the allowability of expenditures; time and effort reporting; record retention; and sub-recipient monitoring responsibilities. New employees of the LEA, as well as incumbent employees, are expected to review this manual to gain familiarity and understanding of the LEA's rules and practices.

Although this manual is not all-inclusive and cannot address all situations, it does provide general information to assist with standard financial operations and grants management. All LEA personnel with financial duties and program-specific fiscal duties are responsible for the contents.

1.1 Approval of Implementation of Manual

Notice of effective date for implementing the requirements of Title 2 CFR part 200, also known as EDGAR:

The Administrative Procedures Manual will be reviewed, updated, and approved annually by the District's Board of Trustees. The Board approves all district policies. The Superintendent approves all district procedures.

Superintendent	Chief Financial Officer
Date:	Date:

Current Year Grants

- 211Title I, Part A
- 212 Title I, Part C (SSA with Region XV ESC)
- 224 IDEA B Formula/SSA
- 240 National School Lunch
- 255 Title II, Part A Principal & Teacher Training & Recruitment
- Title III (SSA with Region XV ESC)

2.0 Organization

Managing State and Federal Grants in RLISD is a collaborative process between the Administration, Business Manager, and the Superintendent. Each respective department shall be responsible for the duties and responsibilities as they are described in, but not limited to, this manual.

2.1 Functional Organization for Federal Grants Management

Name	Position
Aaron Hood	Superintendent
Robin Allen	Business Manager, Payroll and Insurance
Shanna Freeman	PEIMS Coordinator

2.2 Functional Mission for Federal and State Grants Management

The district will manage federal and state grants in ways that mitigate risk by budgeting, expending, and accounting for federal and state grant funds in accordance with the rules and regulations of EDGAR (2 CFR 200) and FASRG (the Texas Education Agency's Financial Accountability Resource Guide).

Alignment between grant fund expenditures and achievement of program goals will be assured through the close, cross-departmental work between the Superintendent, Business Manager, and the campus Principal.

3.0 Internal Controls

RLISD's system of internal controls is in place to prevent, detect, and reduce the risks of fraud, waste, and abuse of federal grant funds. The purpose of the system is to ensure that the district provides reasonable assurance that grant objectives have been met as required by federal regulations and guidelines. The system and its processes are described in this manual.

3.1 Waste, Fraud, and Abuse

To ensure the public receives the most value, the LEA strives to ensure its administrative management of public funds is as effective and efficient as possible, with a high standard of accountability to prevent waste, fraud, and abuse.

All trustees, employees, vendors, contractors, consultants, volunteers, and any other parties who are involved in the LEA's financial transactions shall act with integrity and diligence in duties involving the LEA's financial resources.

The LEA prohibits fraud and financial impropriety, as defined below, in the actions of its trustees, employees, vendors, contractors, consultants, volunteers and others seeking or maintain a business relationship with the LEA.

Fraud and financial impropriety includes, but is not limited to:

- Forgery or unauthorized alteration of any document or account belonging to the LEA;
- Forgery or unauthorized alteration of a check, bank draft, or any other financial document;
- Misappropriation of funds, securities, supplies, or other LEA assets, including employee time;
- Impropriety in the handling of money or reporting of LEA financial transactions;
- Profiteering as a result of insider knowledge of LEA information or activities;
- Unauthorized disclosure of confidential or proprietary information to outside parties;
- Unauthorized disclosure of investment activities engaged in or contemplated by the LEA;
- Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors, or other persons providing services or materials to the LEA;
- Destroying, removing, or inappropriately using records, furniture, fixtures, or equipment;
- Failure to provide financial records required by state and local entities;
- Failure to disclose conflicts of interest as required by policy; and
- Any other dishonest act regarding the finances of the LEA.

Any person who suspects fraud or financial impropriety shall report the suspicions immediately to any supervisor, the Superintendent or designee, the Board President, or local law enforcement.

If assistance is needed in any area of our business operations, please contact any of the staff members listed: Robert Lee ISD Superintendent or Robert Lee ISD Business Manager

3.2 Implementation (2 CFR 200.303)

RLISD has established a system of internal controls in conjunction with the Business Manager and the Superintendent that:

- 1. Provides reasonable assurance that RLISD is in compliance with the statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of the grant;
- 2. Establishes a schedule for evaluating and monitoring this compliance;
- 3. Enables RLISD to take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;
- 4. Safeguards protected personal or sensitive information that may be subject to grant program activities;
- 5. Ensures that grant expenditures and payments are appropriately booked in the district's financial system;
- 6. Ensures a separation of duties within the accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll, and purchasing functions;
- 7. Ensures that charges to grant budgets are only for those activities that are allowable and allocable to the grant.

The Business Manager reports on the district's system of internal controls for grants administration to the Superintendent semi-annually. The report includes grant receipts and expenditures, the purpose and amount of any grant budget amendment that requires approval by the Texas Education Agency or other funding agency or entity, and any finding and responses to those findings, including timelines for resolution.

3.3 Departmental Functions and Responsibilities

The duties of each department are listed below in general terms. Additional, specific duties and responsibilities may be listed within an area of compliance within this Manual.

Business Office

- Assisting with budgeting grants funds, preparing and posting the initial budget and all amendments to the general ledger.
- Assisting with determining the payroll distribution code(s) for all grant-funded staff.
- Preparing all grant-related financial reports (monthly, quarterly and/or annual).
- Preparing all financial records for the annual financial audit and single audit, as appropriate.
- Ensuring compliance with the FASRG in coding all payroll and non-payroll expenditures.
- Adjusting the general ledger, as appropriate, after reconciliation of the time and effort reports, as appropriate if adjustments are necessary
- Managing the day-to-day cash needs for grant expenditures and drawing-down cash reimbursements, as appropriate
- Managing all purchasing and contractual commitments in compliance with the grant periods and allowable cost principles

- Retaining all financial records for the required length of time (7 years) for audit purposes as required by TEA
- Managing all fixed assets and ensuring compliance with the inventory and disposition federal guidelines

Business Office/Human Resources

- Assisting with the recruitment and hiring of all grant-funded staff
- Ensuring that all grant-funded staff meet the Highly Qualified Staff federal guidelines, as appropriate (And, all state certification requirements)
- Ensuring that all grant-funded staff has a job description with the grant-related duties and funding. (And, that all grant-funded staff sign a job description on an annual basis)
- Preparing the Highly Qualified Staff Annual Report and conducting the required public notice or hearing, as appropriate
- Maintaining audit-ready HR employee files for financial audit or single audit purposes, as appropriate
- Developing and maintaining all salary schedules to ensure consistency between local and non-local pay rates (Includes base salaries, stipends and extra-duty rates of pay)
- Assisting with determining the position title, Role ID and other salary information for use in completing the grant application
- Retaining all personnel records for the required length of time (5 years) for audit purposes

Business Manager/Superintendent

- Working cooperatively with the campus administrative staff to ensure that all grant activities are collaboratively planned and appropriate to each campus.
- Providing supporting documentation for budgeted grants funds, submitting all grant amendments to facilitate budget amendments.
- Assisting the Human Resources department with determining the payroll distribution code(s) for all grant-funded staff.
- Preparing all grant-related programmatic (evaluation) reports (monthly, quarterly and/or annual).
- Ensuring compliance with the FASRG in coding all payroll and non-payroll expenditures.
- Receiving and monitoring the time and effort reports, as appropriate, and submitting adjustments, if any, to the finance department
- Monitoring the spending thresholds throughout the grant period to ensure that the grant activities are being conducted systematically throughout the grant period
- Reviewing and approving all purchasing and contractual commitments in compliance with the grant periods and allowable cost principles
- Retaining all grant records for the required length of time (7 years) for audit purposes as required by TEA

- Providing information to the Human Resources department regarding the number and type of grant-funded positions approved in the grant application by the granting authority
- Verifying with the HR department that all grant-funded staff meet the Highly Qualified Staff federal guidelines, as appropriate (And, all state certification requirements)
- Verifying with the HR department that all grant-funded staff has a job description with the grant-related duties and funding. (And, that all grant-funded staff sign a job description on an annual basis)
- Verifying with the HR department that the Highly Qualified Staff Annual Report and conducting the required public notice or hearing, as appropriate
- Assisting the HR department with determining the position title, Role ID and other salary information for use in completing the grant application

All departments shall provide staff training for their respective staff and other staff, as appropriate, regarding the grant management duties and responsibilities for each staff member.

3.4 Risk Mitigation

Risk indicators for managing federal funds are published in EDGAR 2 CFR 200.205 and 2 CFR 200.207. In addition, the Texas Education Agency establishes risk indicators to assess school district risk annually. The Business Manager is responsible for mitigating RLISD risk exposure by establishing, documenting, and maintaining systems to address the standards defined in the EDGAR regulations and TEA procedures. The standards include, but are not necessarily limited to, RLISD's ability to demonstrate:

- Financial stability;
- Quality financial management systems;
- A satisfactory history of performance in managing federal grant programs;
- Procedural systems capable of minimizing audit findings and satisfactorily addressing and resolving them should they occur;
- The ability to effectively implement statutory, regulatory, and other requirements specified in grant programmatic and financial provisions and assurances and NOGAs.

The Business Manager is responsible for assessing RLISD's financial risk levels and correcting risk related findings by independent and grant fund-specific auditors.

The Business Manager reports current risk assessment designations and findings to the Superintendent.

4.0 Financial Management System

The LEA maintains a proper financial management system in order to receive both direct and stateadministered grants and to expend funds associated with a grant award. Certain fiscal controls and procedures must be in place to ensure that all financial management system requirements are met. Failure to meet a requirement may result in return of funds or termination of the award.

4.1 Financial Management Standards 2 CFR §200.302

The standards for financial management systems are found at 2 CFR §200.302. The required standards include:

4.1.1 Identification 2 CFR §200.302(b)(1)

The LEA must identify, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended and the federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and award identification must include, as applicable, the CFDA title and number, federal award identification number and year, name of the federal agency, and, if applicable, name of the pass-through entity.

The Business Manager maintains a system to meet the requirements of 2 CFR 200.302 by documenting:

- 1. The federal Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number;
- 2. The name of the Federal Agency (usually the U.S. Department of Education);
- 3. The name of the pass through agency (usually the Texas Education Agency);
- 4. Accurate, current, and complete revenue, expenditure, and carry forward information;
- 5. Comparison of budgeted and expended amounts;
- 6. Identification of, and control over, funds, property, and other assets.

4.1.2 Financial Reporting 2 CFR §200.302(b)(2)

Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federal award or programs must be made in accordance with the financial reporting requirements set forth in the Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR), specifically 2 CFR §§200.327 Financial Reporting and 200.328 Monitoring and Reporting Program Performance.

4.1.3 Accounting Records 2 CFR §200.302(b)(3)

The LEA must maintain records which adequately identify the source and application of funds provided for federally-assisted activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, income and interest and be supported by source documentation.

4.1.4 Internal Controls 2 CFR §§200.302(b)(4); 200.303

Effective control and accountability must be maintained for all funds, real and personal property, and other assets. The LEA must adequately safeguard all such property/assets and must assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.

"Internal controls" are tools to help program and financial managers achieve results and safeguard the integrity of their program.

The LEA must:

- (a) Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. These internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in "Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government" issued by the Comptroller General of the Unites States or the "Internal Control Integrated Framework", issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
- (b) Comply with Federal statutes, regulation and the terms and conditions of the Federal awards.
- (c) Evaluate and monitor the non-Federal entity's compliance with statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of Federal awards.
- (d) Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance identified in audit findings.
- (e) Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other information the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity designates as sensitive or the non-Federal entity considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

The LEA's internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in "Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government" (the "Green Book") issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (http://gao.gov/products/GAO-14-704G) or the "Internal Control Integrated Framework" issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) (http://coso.org/IC.htm).

The United States General Accounting Office (GAO) identifies five components of internal controls:

- i. Control Environment: A strong control environment allows management and employees to maintain a positive and supportive attitude toward internal controls and conscientious management, such as the codes of conduct for ethical and moral behavioral standards, commitment to competence, appropriate managerial attitudes toward financial, budgetary, and operational and programmatic operations, an organizational structure that clearly defines key areas of authority and responsibility and establishes appropriate lines of reporting, robust human resources policies and practices, and a good relationship with oversight agencies.
- ii. Risk Assessment: To establish clear and consistent entity objectives and to determine internal and external risks, such as changes in the operating environment, new personnel, new or

enhanced information systems, rapid growth, new technology, and new programs or activities.

- iii. Control Activities: To help ensure that management's directives are carried out and that actions are taken to address risks, such as maintaining physical control over valuable assets, segregating key responsibilities among different people, maintaining appropriate documentation, implementing clear written policies in key areas, and restricting access to systems and records.
- iv. Information and Communication. To ensure that personnel receive relevant, reliable, and timely information that enables them to carry out their responsibilities. Procedures should be developed for identifying pertinent information and distributing it in a form and time frame that permits personnel to perform their duties efficiently.
- v. Monitoring. To assess the quality of internal control performance over time and ensure that any findings are promptly resolved. Monitoring should occur on an ongoing basis in the course of normal operations and can include actions such as regular oversight by supervisors, reconciliations, and formal program reviews or audits. Monitoring systems should include policies and procedures for correcting any findings in a timely manner.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent is responsible for reviewing, testing and monitoring, and revising as necessary, the internal controls established for the LEA. Review and monitor of internal controls are performed yearly.

4.1.5 Budget Control 2 CFR §200.302(b)(5)

Actual expenditures or outlays must be compared with budgeted amounts for each federal award.

Please see budget control procedures.

4.1.6 Cash Management 2 CFR §§200.302(b)(6); 200.305

- (b) The financial management system of each non-Federal entity must provide for the following (see also §§200.333 Retention requirements for records, 200.334 Requests fr transfer of records, 200.335 Methods for collection, transmission and storage of information, 200.336 Access to records, and 200.337 Restrictions on public access to records);
- (6) Written procedures to implement the requirements of §200.305 Payment.

The LEA must maintain written procedures to implement the cash management requirements found in EDGAR.

Please see cash management procedures. 4.1.7 Allowable Costs 2 CFR §§200.302(b)(7); Subpart E - Cost Principles

The LEA must maintain written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with EDGAR, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

Please see allowability procedures.

Cost Principles

Allowable Costs 2 *CFR* 200.302 (b)(7):

- (b) The financial management system of each non-Federal entity must provide for the following (see also §§200.333 Retention requirements for records, 200.334 Requests for transfer of recirds, 200.335 Methods for collection, transmission and storage of information, 200.336 Access to records, and 200.337 Restrictions of public access to records):
- (7) Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with Subpart E-Cost Principles of this part and the terms and conditions of the Federal Award.

The Business Manager determines whether a cost is allowable through consideration of whether the item or service and its associated cost are necessary and reasonable for the purpose and performance of the grant (2 CFR 200.403). To be considered allowable, the cost must be adequately documented, which occurs when the purchase requester follows the district's purchasing procedures.

Reasonable Costs

The Business Manager determines whether a cost is reasonable through consideration of whether the cost exceeds a comparative cost which would be incurred by a prudent person with state and local funds (2 CFR 200.404).

Allocable Costs

The Business Manager Programs determines whether a cost is allocable to a federal grant if it is incurred specifically for the purpose and performance of the grant. In addition, the Business Manager will take into consideration whether it benefits the grant and other district functions and services funded with state and local funds, and whether the goods and services paid with the cost are assignable in part to the purpose and performance of the grant (2 CFR 200.405).

If the Business Manager approves the proposed cost, the documentation for the purchase requisition and purchase order a processed according to the district's purchasing procedures.

5.0 Overview of the Financial Management/Accounting System

Robert Lee ISD uses TxEIS accounting management system. This system interfaces with the procurement and inventory systems, the budget loaded onto the system after it is approved by school board. August 31 of each fiscal year, the budged is interfaced with finance. The superintendent and business manager of Robert Lee ISD is responsible for these areas. Under 2

C.F.R. 200.302, a recipient must track the CFDA title and number, federal award identification number and year, name of the federal agency, and, if applicable, name of the pass-through entity. Each federal fund has its own specific fund code.

The Business Manager is responsible for compiling timely and accurate financial reports, subject to review and approval by the superintendent. The reports should be prepared and submitted as specified by the financial reporting clause of each grant or contract award document. These reports must include monthly and cumulative expenditures, project budgets, and a balance remaining column.

The LEA's financial management system provides for accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each grant project. The system adequately identifies the funding source and use of funds and contains information pertaining to grant awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, outlays (expenditures), income, and interest. The financial accounting system accommodates the minimum 15-digit account code mandated by FASRG, can generate information needed for PEIMS (Public Education Information Management System) reporting, and ensures adequate accountability of State and federal funds.

General Ledger

The LEA's detailed general ledger includes, at a minimum, the following information for recorded transactions:

- Reference number (such as check number, purchase order number, or journal voucher number)
- Transaction Date
- Vendor's Name
- Brief description of the transaction
- General ledger account code
- Amount encumbered or obligated
- Amount paid and/or encumbered

Additionally, for each account code used to account for federal grant expenditures, the detailed ledger will include, respective of each grant program:

- CFDA Title and number related to source of fund
- Federal award identification number and year related to source of fund
- Name of the federal agency related to source of fund
- Name of the pass-through entity (such as TEA), if applicable, related to source of fund

- Budgeted expenditures
- Encumbrances
- Actual expenditures.
- A chart of accounts for funds reserved for program-specific fiscal requirements and setasides

The LEA's payroll journal includes, at a minimum, the following information:

- Employee's first and last name
- Employee identification number
- Gross salary and other income
- Deductions
- Net earnings
- For employees paid with federal or State grant funds: The percentage paid out of each grant fund and, if applicable, the percentage paid out of other funding sources

For each pay period, the payroll journal will also include the check date, check number, and fund code to which the payroll costs were charged.

6.0 Budgeting

6.1 Budgeting for All Estimated Revenue and Proposed Expenditures According to Texas Education Code Chapter 44 Fiscal Management (<u>Applicable to ISDs and to Open-Enrollment Charter Schools that Adopt TEC 44)</u>.

Fiscal Year. According to TEC 44.0011, the fiscal year of the LEA begins on July 1 or September 1 of each year, as determined by the board of trustees of the district.

This LEA's fiscal year begins on September 1 and ends on August 31.

Preparation of Budget. According to TEC 44.002, on or before a date set by the State Board of Education, the superintendent shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, a proposed budget covering all estimated revenue and proposed expenditures of the LEA for the following fiscal year. The budget must be prepared according to generally accepted accounting principles, rules adopted by the State Board of Education, and adopted policies of the board of trustees.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent/Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will ensure the budget is prepared in accordance with GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) and State guidelines. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent/Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will develop a budget calendar of critical dates for budget development, submission, and review, including the person or department responsible for each activity listed in the calendar.

According to the TEA 2010 Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG), Budgeting Module, inclusion of budgets for local, State, and Federal **grant** programs is not required for an LEA's officially adopted annual budget; however, budget information for grant programs may be included as a supplement to the official budget. If the LEA has a policy that requires the approval of grant budgets by the school board, the level of detail at which they are approved is left to the discretion of the local school board. However, the authority to approve a budget or budget amendment for a grant program lies with the granting agency and not with the school board.

The LEA does require that **grant** program budget information be included as a supplement to the LEA's officially adopted annual budget. The LEA does require board approval for **grant** budgets or amendments.

Records and Reports. According to TEC 44.003, the superintendent shall ensure that records are kept and that copies of all budgets, all forms, and all other reports are filed on behalf of the LEA at the proper times and in the proper offices as required by this code.

Please see records retention procedures.

Notice of Budget and Tax Rate Meeting; Budget Adoption. According to TEC 44.004, when the budget has been prepared under TEC 44.002, the president shall call a meeting of the board of trustees for the purpose of adopting a budget for the succeeding fiscal year. The president shall provide for the publication of notice of the budget and proposed tax rate meeting according to the standards of TEC 44.004, accessed at

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/ED/htm/ED.44.htm

The LEA publishes above information in a weekly newspaper (The Observer\Enterprise).

The board of trustees, at the meeting called for that purpose, shall adopt a budget to cover all expenditures for the LEA for the next succeeding fiscal year. Any taxpayer of the district may be present and participate in the meeting. The budget must be adopted before the adoption of the tax rate for the tax year in which the fiscal year covered by the budget begins.

The LEA complies with TEC 44.004 for requirements regarding tax rates and certified estimates of taxable value, if applicable.

Publication of Summary of Proposed Budget. According to TEC 44.0041, concurrently with the publication of notice of the budget under TEC 44.004, the LEA posts a summary of the proposed budget on the LEA's Internet website. The budget summary includes: (1) information relating to per student and aggregate spending on (a) instruction; (b) instructional support; (c) central administration; (d) district operations; (e) debt service; and (f) any other category designated by the commissioner; and (2) a comparison to the previous year's actual spending.

Filing of Adopted Budget. According to TEC 44.005, on or before a date set by the State Board of Education, the budget must be filed with TEA according to the rules established by the State Board of Education.

Posting of Adopted Budget. According to TEC 39.084, on final approval of the budget by the board of trustees, the LEA will post on the LEA's Internet website a copy of the budget adopted by the board of trustees. The LEA's Internet website must prominently display the electronic link to the adopted budget. The LEA will maintain the adopted budget on the LEA's Internet website until the third anniversary of the date the budget was adopted.

Effect of Adopted Budget; Amendments. According to TEC 44.006, public funds of the LEA may not be spent in any manner other than as provided for in the budget adopted by the board of trustees, but the board may amend a budget or adopt a supplementary emergency budget to cover necessary unforeseen expenses. Any amendment or supplementary budget must be prepared and filed according to rules adopted by the State Board of Education.

According to the FASRG Module 2 Budgeting, budget amendments are mandated by the State for budgeted funds reallocated from one function level to another and from one State and/or Federal project to another. These budget changes are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain categories and must be amended in the budget for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are determined by the school board.

All budget amendments are required to be adopted by the last day of the fiscal year.

Based upon the level of detail at which the budget is adopted, budget revisions may or may not be required for reallocations within functional levels or programs. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by the school board and recorded in the board minutes.

To provide an adequate audit trail for budget amendments, the amendments will include:

- The original budget amount by fund and function;
- The amount of the amendment by fund and function; and
- The amended budget amount by fund and function.

Major program or budget changes are reviewed by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent/Robert Lee ISD Business Manager to ensure the LEA's legal compliance with state expenditure mandates.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent will approve and record budget transfers on a timely basis.

A budget transfer/amendment form is available through the business office.

6.2 Budgeting for Federal and State Grants

6.2.1 The Planning Phase: Meetings and Discussions

Initial budget discussions and meetings begin at the campus/district level CNA (comprehensive needs assessment) meetings. The LEA bases early decisions on the prior year's award and then make adjustments once the GAN/NOGA is received. These decisions are based on the campus/district CNA. The needs assessment data is used to fund programs/personnel to meet the needs of struggling learners as determined by EOC/STAAR information. Existing resources are considered when making budget decisions. A review of existing programs, equipment, and supplies helps to determine the budget expenditures for the coming year.

The principals of each campus are responsible for determining the needs assessment for their campus. The business manager and superintendent are responsible for actual budget expenditures. Campus needs assessments are submitted to the superintendent prior to budget completion. The superintendent is responsible for all federal grant administration. The Region XV and TECS are responsible for development of the application for federal funds as well as the budget amendments. Wall ISD is the fiscal agent for the Small Schools Cooperative (a cooperative made up of multiple small school districts), a cooperative organized to distribute IDEA-B funds. All IDEA-B funds are flowed through the fiscal agent to the cooperative. The cooperative develops their own set of financial policies and procedures. Robert Lee ISD has a MOU with Small Schools Co-op.

Grant programs are unique and have different program and fiscal requirements. The unique character of grant funds results from both the difference in authority over grant funds and their restriction to specific purposes. Therefore, specific program budgets are prepared for each grant. The grant budget is based on how the grant funds can best aid in the implementation of the program plan. The LEA will take into consideration the legal considerations that may affect how grant funds can be used.

If the grant program has a "Supplement, Not Supplant" requirement, the entire funding picture for the program is examined to ensure that grant funds are not being used to supplant state, local, or other federal funds, as applicable. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent/Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for ensuring the "Supplement, Not Supplant" requirements are not violated.

If program requirements stipulate a category or element that must be tracked, but is not identifiable from TEA's mandatory account code structure, the LEA will designate a local code to track such an expenditure.

Please see description of specific expenditures that require local option codes.

The following sources are used to develop budgets for Federal grants:

- Historical data based on previous grant year actual budget;
- Campus Improvement Plan (CIP);
- Needs Assessments;

- District Improvement Plan (DIP);
- Staffing Needs;
- Grant Requirements;
- Carryover Funds, if applicable.

See page 14 for information on whether grant budgets and amendments require board approval

Reviewing and Approving the Budget: By August 1st, the superintendent and business manager reviews the items in the budget to ensure allowability. See Section 8.2 for a discussion on performing allowability determinations. If the superintendent and business manager determines that a cost is not allowable, then the superintendent will contact the campus principal(s) to alert them to the changes that need to occur.

See discussion on performing allowability determinations.

Once the superintendent and business manager determines that all budgeted items are allowable, the budget is sent to superintendent/business manager for final review and approval. Generally, the budget receives final approval by September 1 of the new fiscal year. Once the budget is approved the business manager loads it on the TxEIS financial system.

Responsibilities for grants submitted via TEA's eGrants applications:

- Budgeting projections are performed by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.
- The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager compiles data using the LEA's Federal Grant spreadsheet to ensure budgeted amounts match allocations
- The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures obligations or expenditures are not incurred prior to submittal of the eGrants application

6.3 Submitting the Grant Application for Federal and State awards

Most grants applied for and received by RLISD are based on formula funding and are renewed each year, based on an application submitted to the funding agency by the district. The Business Manager is responsible for completing and submitting these applications.

The LEA will submit grant applications to TEA by the due date set by TEA. According to TEA Fiscal Guidelines, eGrants applications must be certified and submitted by an individual who has been authorized by the applicant or grantee organization to enter the organization into a legally binding contractual agreement. The "Authorized Official" is the individual who will represent the applicant or grantee in the event any legal disputes arises. For LEAs, this person is usually the superintendent or executive director.

- Data entry into the eGrants application is performed by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager
- The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensure that the LEA meets TEA's deadlines for submittal of grant applications and amendments.
- The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager certify and submits the completed eGrants application.

Department or campus staff seeking to apply for competitive or discretionary grants must receive approval by the Business Manager prior to completing the application. The Business Manager coordinates the approval with the Superintendent. The Business Manager establishes timelines for competitive grant application and submission.

Program Specific: IDEA-B: Prior to submitting the grant application for IDEA-B funds, the LEA performs an initial Excess Cost calculation and performs Maintenance of Effort (MOE) analysis to determine expenditure and budget data required for determination of compliance with the MOE Eligibility Standard. MOE analysis is performed throughout the school year and documentation is kept in the business manager's office.

See information on performing the final Excess Cost calculation with actual, audited data and information on monitoring and analyzing compliance with MOE.

6.4 After Receiving the GAN/NOGA for Federal and State Programs Award

6.4.1 System Controls for Payment to RLISD (2 CFR 200.305)

Unless otherwise noted in the financial provisions and assurances, Notice of Grant Award (NOGA), or procedures of the awarding agency for a particular grant, RLISD will operate on a reimbursement basis for grant-funded expenditures. The Business Manager (1) maintains access controls and passwords to the pass-through agency's financial or reimbursement system, and (2) records in the district's financial system the expenditures, reimbursement requests, reimbursements and fund transfers, and deposits into bank account(s) maintained by the district.

In the event that the district receives an advance payment from a federal granting agency, the district shall ensure that it expends the advanced funds in a timely manner. Excess funds may earn interest, which may require return to the federal granting agency if the interest meets the federal threshold. The Business Manager is responsible for accounting entries and bank reconciliations related to grant accounts payables, payments, and accounts receivables.

On the occasion when the GAN/NOGA is a different amount than originally budgeted, Robert Lee ISD communicates with the TECS to make the budget amendments.

When the NOGA is received, the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will compare the approved NOGA with the grant application to identify any budget revisions TEA may have required before issuing the approval.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures obligations or expenditures are not incurred prior to the effective date, based on the period of obligation established in EDGAR and based on the effective date of the NOGA.

Throughout the grant period, the budget is used as a control measure. The budget is monitored by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager as expenditures are incurred.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures expenditures with grant funds are for allowable costs as approved in the grant application and are used for the intended beneficiaries and program.

6.5 Amending the Budget for Federal and State Programs

The process for amending the budget is prepared by the superintendent/business manager and final approval is needed by the Robert Lee ISD school board.

Budget amendments are requested before expenditures that exceed acceptable limits are incurred, to ensure that the grant remains in compliance with the granting agency's guidelines. In addition, expenditures requiring a budget amendment generally are not allowable if the obligation is incurred before the approval of the amendment. Expenditure monitoring is performed by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager throughout the grant period as a control measure.

The district follows the TEA guidelines for submitting federal and state grant amendments. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager monitors the deadlines for each grant to ensure amendments are submitted in a timely manner.

District personnel will refer to TEA's "When to Amend the Application" chart for guidance on when to amend a grant application, dependent on type of grant, based on scenarios in the chart. The chart can be accessed at:

http://tea.texas.gov/Finance_and_Grants/Administering_a_Grant.aspx

Examples taken from the chart:

- For a federally-funded formula grant, an amendment is NOT required to:
 - Increase or decrease the amount of funds currently approved in a class/object code on the Program Budget Summary by 25% or less of the total budgeted amount, as long

- as a new line item is not being added. (Exception: Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS) in the Special Education Consolidated grant application always requires an amendment.)
- o Increase or decrease the amount of funds budgeted for a line item on any supporting budget schedule (i.e., within a class/object code) as long as the description of the line item does not change and as long as the current amount approved in that class/object code is not changed by more than 25% of the total budgeted amount. (Exception: Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS) in the Special Education Consolidated grant application always requires an amendment.)
- o Increase the salary amount of funds budgeted for a line item (i.e., a position type).
- o Increase or decrease the number of positions previously approved by 20% or less, as long as a new position type is not being added.
- For a federally-funded formula grant, an amendment IS required to:
 - o Add a class/object code not previously budgeted.
 - o Increase or decrease the amount of funds currently approved in a class/object on the Program Budget Summary by more than 25% of the total budgeted amount.
 - o Add a new line item on any of the supporting budget schedules.
 - o Increase or decrease the number of positions approved by more than 20%/
 - Add a type of position not initially approved.
 - Add a new item or increase the quantity of capital outlay items approved for articles costing \$5,000 or more.
 - o Add a new item of capital outlay for articles costing less than \$5,000.

The district's budget amendment is initiated by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager. Justification for a budget amendment must include the requested dollar amount, description of the cost item, and reason for the amendment.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager confirms that the funds are available, the proposed expenditures are allowable use of funds, and the reason for the amendment qualifies under grant requirements and TEA guidelines.

If approved, the data is entered into the applicable grant application by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.

The eGrants application amendment is certified and submitted by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.

Upon receipt of the NOGA, the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager records the approved amendment in the accounting records either by memorandum entry or by journal entry. The accounting records should provide a complete record of the approved grant budget and all amendments, as well as transactions that do not require an official amendment submission to TEA.

6.6 Budget Control for Federal and State Programs

The district monitors its financial performance by comparing and analyzing actual results with budgeted results. The superintendent/business managers are responsible for comparing and analyzing results. Reports are given to the superintendent monthly.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will monitor actual expenditures to budget projections on a monthly basis.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for performing cost reconciliation on a quarterly basis for federally funds positions of employees working on multiple cost objectives. Adjustments will be performed annually if the difference between actual and budgeted is less than ten percent. Adjustments will be performed quarterly if the difference between actual and budgeted is ten percent or greater.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will monitor cash flows statements and fund balances and will perform bank reconciliations on a monthly basis.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will monitor expenditures, and obligated and encumbered balances of federal funds, on a monthly basis to ensure purchases benefit the beneficiaries during the grant program and to guard against high carryover amounts.

The following special allotments from the Foundation School Program (FSP) are monitored monthly by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager to ensure indirect costs do not exceed the maximum amounts established in Texas Administrative Code (TAC) 105.11: Gifted and Talented, Career and Technology, Special Education, Bilingual Education, and Compensatory Education.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager evaluates the budget for its effectiveness in attaining goals and objectives. Evaluation may involve an examination of how funds were expended, what outcomes resulted from the expenditure of funds, and to what degree these outcomes achieved the objectives stated during the planning phase. This evaluation phase is important in determining the following year's budgetary allocations.

7.0 Accounting Records

7.1 Accounting System According to Texas Education Code Chapter 44 Fiscal Management

Accounting System. According to TEC 44.007, a standard school fiscal accounting system must be adopted and installed by the board of trustees of each district. The accounting system must conform with generally accepted accounting principles. The accounting system must meet at least the minimum requirements prescribed by the commissioner, subject to review and comment by the state auditor.

Records and Reports. According to TEC 44.007, a record must be kept of all revenues realized and of all expenditures made during the fiscal year for which a budget is adopted. A report of the revenues and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year shall be filed with the agency on or before the date set by the State Board of Education, and according to the requirements of the State Board of Education.

Please see records retention procedures.

7.2 Accounting Code Structure

The proper coding of the budget and classification of expenditures is critical for the accurate oversight of the LEA's budget. The LEA uses the accounting code structure described in the TEA Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG). The following elements are included in the accounting code structure, in this sequence: (a) A mandatory three-digit Fund Code; (b) A mandatory two-digit Function Code; (c) A mandatory four-digit Object Code; (d) An optional two-digit code to provide special accountability at the local level; (e) A mandatory three-digit Organization Code; (f) A mandatory single-digit Fiscal Year Code; (g) A two-digit Program Intent Code; (h) An optional single-digit code that is used at the local level; (i) An optional two-digit code that is used at the local level to further describe the transaction.

Local Option Codes:

IDEA-B: For the Federal IDEA-B grant, local option codes are established to ensure proper monitoring and tracking of IDEA-B funds used for proportionate share for equitable services to parentally-placed private school children with disabilities [Note: proportionate share is not applicable to charter schools or any ISDs that do not have private schools, including home schools, in their jurisdiction], the 25% set-aside for residential placement, if using IDEA-B funds for the set-aside, and for Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS), if applicable.

For State funds, local option codes are established to ensure state compensatory education (SCE) funds and any other funding necessary to sufficiently support the cost of additional accelerated instruction for students who fail to perform satisfactorily on an end-of-course (EOC) assessment instruction according to TEC 28.0217, are separately budgeted and prioritized.

Chart of Accounts: Appendix B provides the LEA's chart of accounts for all funds and expenditures at the level of the number, name, and description of each account. Locally defined

options codes are included, as well as a chart of accounts that identifies funds reserved for various grant requirements.

7.3 Accounting Records

The LEA must maintain records which adequately identify the source and application of funds provided for federally-assisted activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, income and interest and be supported by source documentation. The Robert Lee ISD Business Office maintains these records.

7.4 Accounting Controls

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager utilizes a year-end audit preparation checklist to ensure year-end balances are reflected correctly.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager utilizes a monthly reconciliation checklist that is reviewed by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent on a monthly basis.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent reviews financial statements for accuracy on a monthly basis.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent evaluates the internal accounting system and its report writing capabilities in order to conform internal reports to the formats required for year-end.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures the annual inventory of capital assets is reconciled with the subsidiary ledger or general ledger.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures the Form SF-SAC Data Collection Form for Reporting on Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations is filed by the deadline for each fiscal year.

8.0 Spending Grant Funds

While developing and reviewing the grant budget, the superintendent/business manager should keep in mind the difference between direct costs and indirect costs.

8.1 Direct and Indirect Costs

Determining Whether a Cost is Direct or Indirect: Direct costs are those costs that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost objective, such as a federal award, or other internally or externally funded activity, or that can be directly assigned to such activities relatively easily with a high degree of accuracy. 2 C.F.R. § 200.413(a). Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one cost objective, and not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefitted, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. 2 C.F.R. § 200.56. Costs incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances must be treated consistently as either direct or indirect costs. 2 C.F.R. § 200.413(a).

Identification with the federal award rather than the nature of the goods and services involved is the determining factor in distinguishing direct from indirect costs of Federal awards. Typical costs charged directly to a Federal award are the compensation of employees who work on that award, their related fringe benefit costs, the costs of materials and other items of expense incurred for the Federal award. 2 C.F.R. § 200.413(b). The salaries of administrative and clerical staff should normally be treated as indirect costs. Direct charging of these costs may be appropriate only if all of the following conditions are met:

- Administrative or clerical services are integral to a project or activity;
- Individuals involved can be specifically identified with the project or activity;
- Such costs are explicitly included in the budget or have the prior written approval of the federal awarding agency; and
- The costs are not also recovered as indirect costs. 2 C.F.R. § 200.413(c).

Indirect Cost Rate: The Robert Lee ISD indirect cost rate is determined by TEA and approved by the Robert Lee ISD administration. Annually, the state sets the indirect cost rate.

Applying the Indirect Cost Rate: Once the LEA has an approved indirect cost rate, the percentage is multiplied against the actual direct costs (excluding distorting items such as equipment, contracts in excess of \$25,000, pass-through funds, etc.) incurred under a particular grant to produce the dollar amount of indirect costs allowable to that award. 34 C.F.R § 75.564; 34 C.F.R. § 76.569. Once the LEA applies the approved rate, the funds that may be claimed for indirect costs have no federal accountability and may be used as if they were non-federal funds. For Direct Grants, reimbursement of indirect costs is subject to the availability of funds and statutory or administrative restrictions. 34 C.F.R. § 75.564.

Where a federal program has a specific cap on the percentage of administrative costs that may be charged to a grant, that cap must include all direct administrative charges as well as any recovered indirect charges.

8.2 Determining Allowability of Costs: Subpart E - Cost Principles

Expenditures must be aligned with approved budgeted items. Certain changes or variations from the state-approved budget and grant application need prior approval from the state, according to

TEA's guidance on "When to Amend the Application" accessed at: http://tea.texas.gov/Finance_and_Grants/Administering_a_Grant.aspx

Please see procedures for amending the budget and grant application.

When determining how the LEA will spend its grant funds, superintendent/business manager will review the cost to determine whether it is an allowable use of federal grant funds:

- Before submitting their grant application: Robert Lee ISD Business Office
- Before obligating and spending those funds on the proposed good or service: Robert Lee
 ISD Business Office
- After the cost item is purchased and received, to ensure it is being used for its intended purpose (this includes ensuring that the personnel who will use the cost item are aware of its fund source and intended purpose, as applicable; labeling the equipment with its fund source, if applicable): Robert Lee ISD Business Office

Except where otherwise authorized by statute, all costs supported by federal education funds must meet the standards outlined in EDGAR, 2 CFR Part 3474 and 2 CFR Part 200, as well as program-specific requirements and State and local rules.

Part 200's cost guidelines must be considered when federal grant funds are expended. Federal rules require state- and local-level requirements and policies regarding expenditures to be followed as well. When differing regulations and rules conflict, the most restrictive rule is followed. For example, state and/or local policies relating to travel or equipment may be narrower than the federal rules and therefore, the stricter State and/or local policies must be followed. Further, certain types of incentives are allowable under federal law, but are not allowable under State law.

In order for a cost to be allowable, the expenditure must also be allowable under the applicable program statute (e.g., Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), or the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act (Perkins), or IDEA-B), along with accompanying program regulations, non-regulatory guidance and grant award notifications.

This manual includes sections on "Basic Considerations", "General Provisions for Selected Items of Cost", and "Questions to Consider When Determining Allowability of Cost with Federal Funds." Fiscal and program staff should refer to these sections to ensure purchases are allowable with federal funds.

8.2.1 Basic Considerations 2 CFR §§200.403-406

Except where otherwise authorized by statute, costs must meet the following general criteria in order to be allowable under Federal awards:

■ Be Necessary and Reasonable for the performance of the federal award. 2 CFR §200.403(a). LEA staff must consider the following elements when determining the reasonableness of a cost. A cost is reasonable if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision was made to incur the cost. 2 CFR §200.404. For example, reasonable means that sound business practices were followed, and purchases were comparable to market prices.

When determining reasonableness of a cost, consideration must be given to:

- Whether the cost is of a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation of the LEA or the proper and efficient performance of the federal award. 2 CFR §200.404(a).
- The restraints or requirements imposed by such factors as: sound business practices; arm's-length bargaining; federal, state, local, and other laws and regulations; and terms and conditions of the federal award. 2 CFR §200.404(a).
- o Market prices for comparable goods or services for the geographic area. 2 CFR §200.404(c).
- Whether the individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances considering their responsibilities to the LEA, its employees, its students, the public at large, and the federal government. 2 CFR §200.404(d).
- Whether the LEA significantly deviates from its established practices and policies regarding the incurrence of costs, which may unjustifiably increase the federal award's cost. 2 CFR §200.404(e).

While 2 CFR §200.404 does not provide specific descriptions of what satisfies the "necessary" element beyond its inclusion in the reasonableness analysis above, necessary is determined based on the needs of the program. Specifically, the expenditure must be necessary to achieve an important program objective. A key aspect in determining whether a cost is necessary is whether the LEA can demonstrate that the cost addresses an existing need, and can prove it. For example, the LEA may deem a language skills software program necessary for a limited English proficiency program.

When determining whether a cost is necessary, consideration may be given to:

- Whether the cost is needed for the proper and efficient performance of the grant program.
- Whether the cost is identified in the approved budget or application.
- Whether there is an educational benefit associated with the cost.
- Whether the cost aligns with identified needs based on results and findings from a needs assessment.
- o Whether the cost addresses program goals and objectives and is based on program data.

• Allocable to the federal award. 2 CFR §200.403(a). A cost is allocable to the federal award if the goods or services involved are chargeable or assignable to that federal award in accordance with the relative benefits received. 2 CFR §200.405(a). This means that the federal grant program derived a benefit in proportion to the funds charged to the program. For example, if 50% of a teacher's salary is paid with grant funds, then that teacher must spend at least 50% of his or her time on that grant program.

Approval is based on whether the proposed purchase is allowable, reasonable, and allocable to the grant fund proposed for the purchase. The "test" for any cost attributed to a grant is that it meets all three criteria. The allocable standard is met if the cost:

- o Is incurred specifically for the federal award;
- o Benefits both the federal award and other work of the LEA and can be distributed in proportions that may be approximated using reasonable methods; and
- o Is necessary to the overall operation of the LEA and is assignable in part to the federal award in accordance with the principles in 2 CFR §200.405.

If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that can be determined without undue effort or cost, the cost must be allocated to the projects based on the proportional benefit. If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that cannot be determined because of the interrelationship of the work involved, the costs may be allocated or transferred to benefitted projects on any reasonable documented basis. 2 CFR §200.405 (d).

- Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth as cost principles in Part 200 or in the terms and conditions of the federal award, as to types or amount of cost items. 2 CFR §200.403(b).
- Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both federally-financed and other activities of the LEA. 2 CFR §200.403(c). For example, if the state allows two weeks of vacation for employees, then employees paid from federal funds must also be allowed two weeks of vacation.
- **Be accorded consistent treatment.** A cost cannot be assigned to a federal award as a direct cost if any other cost incurred for the same purpose in like circumstances has been allocated to the federal award as an indirect cost. 2 CFR §200.403(d).
- Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), unless provided otherwise in Part 200. 2 CFR §200.403(e).

- Not be included as a match or cost-share, unless the specific federal program authorizes federal costs to be treated as such. 2 CFR §200.403(f). Some federal program statutes require the non-federal entity to contribute a certain amount of non-federal resources to be eligible for the federal program.
- **Be adequately documented.** 2 CFR §200.403(g). All expenditures must be properly documented.
- **Be the net of all applicable credits.** The term "applicable credits" refers to those receipts or reduction-of-expenditure-type transactions that operate to offset or reduce expense items allocable to the federal award. Typical examples of such transactions are: purchase discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or indemnities on losses; insurance refunds or rebates, and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that such credits accruing to or received by the LEA relate to allowable costs for the federal award, they shall be credited to the federal award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate. 2 CFR §200.406.

Any federal funds used for travel will follow all state policies.

8.3 Questions to Consider When Determining Allowability of Cost with Federal Funds

8.3.1 General Provisions for Selected Items of Cost 2 CFR §§200.420-200.475

This section provides principles to be applied in establishing the allowability of certain items involved in determining cost, in addition to the Basic Considerations listed above. These principles apply whether or not a particular item of cost is properly treated as direct cost or indirect cost. Failure to mention a particular item of cost is not intended to imply that it is either allowable or unallowable; rather, determination as to allowability in each case of a cost item not listed should be based on the treatment provided for similar or related items of cost, and based on the cost principles described in EDGAR. In the case of a discrepancy between the provisions of a specific federal grant program and the provisions listed below, the specific federal grant program's provisions govern.

55 specific cost items from 2 CFR §§200.420-200.475 are listed in the chart below, along with the citation where it is discussed whether the item is allowable. Please do not assume that an item is allowable because it is listed in the, as it may be unallowable despite its inclusion in the selected items of cost section. The expenditure may be unallowable for a number of reasons, including: the express language of the regulation states the item is unallowable; the terms and conditions of a specific grant program deem the item unallowable; or State/local restrictions dictate that the item is unallowable. The item may also be unallowable because it does not meet one of the cost

principles, such as being reasonable because it is considered too expensive. If an item is unallowable for any of these reasons, federal funds cannot be used to purchase it.

The selected item of cost addressed in Part 200 includes the following (in alphabetical order):

Item of Cost	Citation of Allowability Rule
Advertising and public relations	2 CFR §200.421
Advisory councils	2 CFR §200.422
Alcoholic beverages	2 CFR §200.423
Alumni/ae activities	2 CFR §200.424
Audit services	2 CFR §200.425
Bad debts	2 CFR §200.426
Bonding costs	2 CFR §200.427
Collections of improper payments	2 CFR §200.428
Commencement and convocation costs	2 CFR §200.429
Compensation – personal services	2 CFR §200.430
Compensation – fringe benefits	2 CFR §200.431
Conferences	2 CFR §200.432
Contingency provisions	2 CFR §200.433
Contributions and donations	2 CFR §200.434
Defense and prosecution of criminal and civil	
proceedings, claims, appeals and patent	2 CFR §200.435
infringements	
Depreciation	2 CFR §200.436
Employee health and welfare costs	2 CFR §200.437
Entertainment costs	2 CFR §200.438
Equipment and other capital expenditures	2 CFR §200.439
Exchange rates	2 CFR §200.440
Fines, penalties, damages and other settlements	2 CFR §200.441
Fund raising and investment management costs	2 CFR §200.442
Gains and losses on disposition of depreciable assets	2 CFR §200.443
General costs of government	2 CFR §200.444
Goods and services for personal use	2 CFR §200.445
Idle facilities and idle capacity	2 CFR §200.446
Insurance and indemnification	2 CFR §200.447
Intellectual property	2 CFR §200.448
Interest	2 CFR §200.449

Lobbying	2 CFR §200.450
Losses on other awards or contracts	2 CFR §200.451
Maintenance and repair costs	2 CFR §200.452
Materials and supplies costs, including costs of	2 CFR §200.453
computing devices	
Memberships, subscriptions, and professional	2 CFR §200.454
activity costs	2 CI K §200.434
Organization costs	2 CFR §200.455
Participant support costs	2 CFR §200.456
Plant and security costs	2 CFR §200.457
Pre-award costs	2 CFR §200.458
Professional service costs	2 CFR §200.459
Proposal costs	2 CFR §200.460
Publication and printing costs	2 CFR §200.461
Rearrangement and reconversion costs	2 CFR §200.462
Recruiting costs	2 CFR §200.463
Relocation costs of employees	2 CFR §200.464
Rental costs of real property and equipment	2 CFR §200.465
Scholarships and student aid costs	2 CFR §200.466
Selling and marketing costs	2 CFR §200.467
Specialized service facilities	2 CFR §200.468
Student activity costs	2 CFR §200.469
Taxes (including Value Added Tax)	2 CFR §200.470
Termination costs	2 CFR §200.471
Training and education costs	2 CFR §200.472
Transportation costs	2 CFR §200.473
Travel costs	2 CFR §200.474
Trustees	2 CFR §200.475

State rules on procurement and travel are more restrictive than federal rules. Please refer to the procurement and travel sections of this manual.

In addition to reviewing the "Basic Considerations" and "General Provisions for Selected Items of Cost" sections above, fiscal and program staff should reference "Questions to Consider When Determining Allowability of Cost with Federal Funds" on page 23, when making allowability determinations.

8.4 Travel Costs

8.4.1 Federal Allowability Rules for Travel Costs

General. Travel costs are the expenses for transportation, lodging, subsistence, and related items incurred by employees who are in travel status on official business of the LEA. Such costs may be charged on an actual cost basis, on a per diem or mileage basis in lieu of actual costs incurred, or on a combination of the two, provided the method used is applied to an entire trip and not selected days of the trip, and results in charges consistent with those normally allowed in like circumstances in the LEA's non-federally-funded activities and in accordance with the LEA's written travel reimbursement policies. 2 CFR §200.474(a). Notwithstanding the provisions of §200.444 General costs of government, travel cost of officials covered by that section are allowable with the prior written approval of the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity when they are specifically related to the federal award. However, a per diem basis in lieu of actual costs is not allowable according to the more restrictive State rules.

Lodging and subsistence. Costs incurred by employees and officers for travel, including costs of lodging, other subsistence, and incidental expenses, must be considered reasonable and otherwise allowable only to the extent such costs do not exceed charges normally allowed by the LEA in its regular operations as the result of its written travel policy. In addition, if these costs are charged directly to the federal award, documentation must be maintained that justifies that (1) participation of the individual is necessary to the federal award; and (2) the costs are reasonable and consistent with the LEA's established travel policy. 2 CFR §200.474(b).

Dependent Care Costs. Temporary dependent care costs (as dependent is defined in 26 U.S.C 152) above and beyond regular dependent care that directly results from travel to conferences is allowable provided that: (1) the costs are a direct result of the individual's travel for the federal award; (2) the costs are consistent with the LEA's documented travel policy for all LEA travel; and (3) are only temporary during the travel period. Travel costs for dependents are unallowable, except for travel of duration of six months or more with prior approval of the federal awarding agency. 2 CFR §200.474(c).

As needed, the costs of identifying, but not providing, locally available dependent-care resources are allowable conference-related costs. 2 CFR §200.432.

Commercial air travel. Airfare costs in excess of the basic least expensive unrestricted accommodations class offered by commercial airlines are unallowable except when such accommodations would: (1) require circuitous routing; (2) require travel during unreasonable hours; (3) excessively prolong travel; (4) result in additional costs that would offset the transportation savings; or (5) offer accommodations not reasonably adequate for the traveler's

medical needs. The LEA must justify and document these conditions on a case-by-case basis in order for the use of first-class or business-class airfare to be allowable in such cases. 2 CFR §200.474(e).

8.4.2 Texas Travel Reimbursement Guidelines

Mileage, lodging, and meal reimbursement rates published by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts apply to all grants funded by TEA for individuals on travel status.

Designated Headquarters definition:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/gen/def/index.php

The area within the boundaries of the city in which the employee's place of employment is located. If an employee's place of employment is located within an unincorporated area, then the area within a five-mile radius of the place of employment is the employee's designated headquarters. If an incorporated area is completely surrounded by the incorporated municipality in which an employee's place of employment is located, then the employee's designated headquarters includes the surrounded municipality or area.

Duty Point definition:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/gen/def/index.php

The destination, other than a place of employment, to which the LEA employee travels to conduct official LEA business. If the destination is outside the employee's designated headquarters, then the duty point is either the incorporated municipality in which the destination is located or the unincorporated area within a five-mile radius of the destination.

Gratuity definition:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/gen/def/index.php

Something given voluntarily or beyond obligation, usually in response to or in anticipation of a service.

Incidental Expense definition:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/gen/def/index.php

An expense incurred while traveling on official LEA business. The term includes a mandatory insurance or service charge and an applicable tax, except a tax based on the cost of a meal. The term does not include a meal, lodging or transportation expense, a personal expense, an expense

that an individual would incur regardless of whether the individual were traveling on official LEA business, a tip or a gratuity.

Transportation:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/index.php

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for transportation charges incurred while conducting LEA business. The employee should select the most cost effective method of transportation available. Details are described in this travel section.

Mileage in personal vehicle:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/personal.php

LEA employees are entitled to be reimbursed for mileage incurred to conduct LEA business. The reimbursement may not exceed the product of the actual number of miles traveled for business and the maximum mileage reimbursement rate established by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, or the rate established by the LEA, if lower than the state rate.

Mileage reimbursement rates are subject to change, and must not exceed rates published by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. The LEA is not required to reimburse employees at the maximum state rate. If the LEA chooses to reimburse at a lower rate, the LEA will notify affected individuals in writing before implementing the lower rate. Accounts apply to all grants funded by TEA for individuals on travel status.

The number of reimbursable miles may not exceed the number of miles of the most cost-effective reasonably safe route between two duty points. Travelers are required to select the shortest and most economical route but may justify selection of another route if it was chosen for safety reasons and specific justification of the selection is given. In determining the most cost-effective reasonably safe route, the LEA may consider the route that provides the shortest distance, the quickest drive time or the safest road conditions. Specific justification of the selection should be submitted by the employee if the shortest route is not chosen.

Travelers are required to calculate mileage by one of the following two methods:

- Employee's vehicle odometer reading (supporting documentation must include a point-topoint mileage itemization); or
- Electronic mapping source (such as that on <u>www.Mapquest.com</u> or any other online mapping service). If this method is chosen, the name of the mapping service used must be documented and the traveler must print out the driving directions provided by the site and attach them to the travel youcher.

The LEA will] reimburse an employee for mileage between a residence and an airport. If applicable, the mileage reimbursement is limited to the cost of one two-way trip to and from the airport in the employee's personal vehicle plus parking at the airport.

LEA employees will not be reimbursed for mileage incurred in traveling between the employee's residence and place of employment in a personally owned or leased motor vehicle unless the travel: (1) is necessitated by extraordinary circumstances, and (2) occurs outside of the hours the employee is working. The same restrictions and requirements that apply to the use of a personally owned vehicle apply to an employee's use of mass transit, taxi or limousine when traveling between an employee's residence and place of employment.

Reimbursement expenses for travel by persons with disabilities will conform to Texas Government Code, Section 660.143(a).

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.660.htm#660.143

Four-per-car rule:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/fourper.php

When employees travel on the same dates with the same itinerary, they must coordinate travel. When four or fewer employees travel on the same itinerary, only one may be reimbursed for mileage. When more than four employees travel on the same itinerary, only one out of every four may be reimbursed for mileage.

Rental vehicles:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/rental.php

LEA employees are entitled to reimbursement for the cost of renting a vehicle to conduct state business. The reimbursement includes all applicable taxes and mandatory charges. It also may include a charge for a collision damage waiver or a loss damage waiver if not already included in the contracted rate for the rental. A charge for an additional driver may only be reimbursed if incurred for a business reason. A charge for a liability insurance supplement, personal accident insurance, safe trip insurance or personal effects insurance is not reimbursable.

When at least two employees share a rental vehicle, each employee is entitled to be reimbursed for his or her share of the rental cost.

For an employee to be reimbursed for a rental expense, the employee must provide proof that the expense was incurred. A complete receipt issued by the rental company serves this purpose. The receipt must include the following: (1) The name of the rental company, and (2) The name of the

employee renting the vehicle, and (3) The starting and ending dates of the rental, and (4) An itemization of expenses incurred, and (5) Proof of payment. If a receipt does not include all of the five items listed above, the rental contract may also be included to provide that information.

A receipt that has been altered by any person other than the entity issuing the receipt is unacceptable. A receipt to which additional information has been added is considered unaltered if the information does not conflict with the original information on the receipt.

Commercial air transportation:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/commair/index.php

The LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for the actual cost of commercial air transportation incurred to conduct LEA business. The reimbursement may not exceed the cost of the lowest available airfare between the employee's designated headquarters and the employee's duty point.

To be reimbursed, the employee must provide proof that the expense was incurred. A complete passenger receipt issued by a commercial airline company or an itinerary issued by the company or a travel agency serves this purpose. The receipt or itinerary must include the following: (1) The name of the employee and airline, and (2) The ticket number, and (3) The class of transportation, and (4) The travel dates, and (5) The amount of the airfare, and (6) The origin and destination of each flight, and (7) Proof of payment.

A passenger receipt or itinerary that has been altered by any person other than the entity issuing the receipt of the itinerary is unacceptable. A receipt or itinerary to which additional information has been added is considered unaltered if the information does not conflict with the original information on the receipt.

Baggage Fees:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/commair/excessbags.php

Baggage charges that are related to LEA business are reimbursable. It is assumed that the first checked bag is necessary to complete business travel. Charges for excessive baggage may be reimbursed as long as it is related to LEA business (e.g. LEA-owned equipment). The LEA will ensure the reasonable of the reimbursement and number of bags necessary.

Private aircraft:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/privair.php

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for the employee's use of an aircraft owned or leased by the employee. The reimbursement may not exceed the product of the highway mileage

between the designate headquarters and the duty point and the maximum aircraft mileage reimbursement rate. The maximum aircraft mileage rate is accessed at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php

The aircraft mileage reimbursement rate is inclusive of all expenses associated with the employee's use of his or her vehicle.

Mass transit, taxi or limousine:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/mass.php

The LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for the actual cost of transportation by bus, subway, other mode of mass transit or taxi if incurred to conduct LEA business. The cost is only reimbursable if provided by a commercial transportation company.

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for the actual cost of transportation by limousine only if it was the least costly transportation available considering all relevant circumstances.

If a taxi or limousine is shared by two or more LEA employees, then only the employee who paid for the transportation may be reimbursed for that expense. The other employees may be reimbursed only for charges imposed on an individual-by-individual basis.

State law does not require a receipt for a reimbursement of travel by bus, subway, other mode of mass transit, taxi or limousine. The supporting documentation must itemize the date and the fare charged for each trip.

Direct payment of transportation expenses:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/direct.php

The LEA may directly pay a commercial transportation company, a credit card issuer, or a travel agency for the expense of transporting the LEA's employees. The LEA may directly pay a commercial transportation company, a credit card issuer, or a travel agency *in advance* of the employee's travel if the company offers lower rates for the transportation. However, an appropriation for the current fiscal year may not be used to pay for transportation that will occur during the next fiscal year.

The amount of the LEA's direct payment of a transportation expense may not exceed the amount that would have been reimbursed to the employee for that expense.

Parking:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/parking.php

The LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for a parking expense incurred while traveling on LEA business in a personally owned or leased vehicle, rental vehicle, or LEA-owned or leased vehicle. The LEA will not reimburse the employee for parking paid if none of the mileage or rental cost is reimbursable.

Tolls:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/trans/tolls.php

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for tolls paid when the employee travels in a personally owned or leased vehicle, rental vehicle, or LEA-owned or leased vehicle. The LEA will not be reimbursed for tolls paid if none of the mileage or rental cost is reimbursable.

Non-Overnight Travel:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/nonover/index.php

Refer to the Non-Overnight Meals section.

Overnight Travel:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/over/index.php

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for lodging, meal and incidental expense incurred while conduction LEA business at a duty point outside of his or her designated headquarters, according to the specifics outlined in this travel section.

In-State Travel:

The rates prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual are used for reimbursement of in-state meal and lodging expenditures.

Out-of-State Travel:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/over/out.php

An LEA may only pay for business-related travel expenses incurred outside of Texas if the travel was approved in advance in accordance with local policy. If approved in advance, an employee who travels within or outside the continental United States shall be reimbursed for the actual cost of lodging and meals. However, the reimbursement out of grant funds may not exceed the maximum meals and lodging rates based on federal travel regulations that are issued by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts (refer to the Meals and Lodging section of this manual). If local policy reimburses at a *lesser* amount, you must comply with local policy. If local

policy reimburses at a *greater* amount, you must pay the difference from local or state funds (not from grant funds).

Out-of-State Travel with federal grants funds is not allowable without prior approval from TEA. Refer to TEA guidelines for the approval process.

<u>Travel to U.S. possessions, Alaska, Hawaii, Canada or Mexico</u>: An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for actual lodging and meal expenses incurred while conducting LEA business at a duty point in a U.S. possession, Alaska, Hawaii, Canada or Mexico.

Foreign travel:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/over/foreign/index.php

The LEA allows foreign travel for its employees. If local policy allows foreign travel, the employee is entitled to be reimbursed for actual lodging and meal expenses incurred while conducting LEA business at a duty point in a foreign country other than Canada or Mexico. Prior approval by the LEA's chief administrator or designee is required. Prior approval by the LEA's chief administrator is not required for travel to Canada or Mexico.

Meals and Lodging:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/reimburse.php

Meal and lodging rates differ depending on whether the travel is in-state or out-of-state. State travel expense reimbursement is not a per diem. An employee must claim the actual expenses incurred for meals and lodging not to exceed the maximum allowable rates. The maximum should not be claimed unless the actual expenditures equal or exceed the maximum allowable rate.

The following maximum meal and lodging reimbursement rates apply to in-state and out-of-state travel.

- If local policy restricts travel, per diem, and other travel expenses to a rate less than State law, the applicant must budget and request reimbursement from the grant *at the lesser rate*.
- If local policy exceeds the maximum recovery rate specified in, State law, then the difference must be paid from state or local funds, i.e., not from grant funds.
- *Travel allowances*, in which the traveler receives a flat per diem for lodging and/or meals, regardless of the amount actually expended, are <u>not allowable</u> per State law. (State law is more restrictive than federal law.)

The LEA must use the federal rates provided by the General Services Administration (GSA) for both in-state and out-of-state travel within the contiguous United States. Refer to the GSA's Domestic Maximum Per Diem Rates accessed at:

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877

If the city is not listed, but the county is listed, use the rate of the county.

For areas not listed (city or county), use the rates listed on the Travel Reimbursement Rates document accessed at: https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php

Federal travel regulations are typically updated on October 1 of each year; however, changes may be made any time during the year. It is possible for two sets of rates to apply to a single trip. If employees are traveling when the rates change, they must use the rates in effect on each specific day of travel.

Because the reimbursement rates can change, it is recommended that travelers print the page at the time reservations are made and submit the printout with the travel reimbursement voucher as a supporting document.

Meals:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/meals/index.php https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/meals/reimburse.php

An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a meal expense incurred on a day that the employee conducts LEA business outside of his or her designated headquarters. The meal expense is only reimbursable if the employee is outside of his or her designated headquarters for at least six consecutive hours.

Meal expenses incurred while traveling to a duty point the day before LEA business begins and traveling from a duty point the day after LEA business ends are reimbursable. Meal expenses incurred more than one day before or after the LEA business begins or ends are not reimbursable unless the expenses are incurred to qualify for discount airfare or travel to or from the duty point reasonably requires more than one day.

An LEA employee may only be reimbursed for his or her actual meal expense not to exceed the maximum meal reimbursement rate for that location. The State travel expense reimbursement is not a per diem. The maximum should not be claimed unless the actual expenditures equal or exceed the maximum allowable rate. (State law is more restrictive than federal law.)

Meal receipts:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/meals/receipts.php

Meal receipts are not required by law. However, the LEA may establish an internal policy that employees must submit receipts for meals as a condition for reimbursement. If the LEA does not require meal receipts, the employee must certify that the reimbursement amount being requested is the actual meal expense not to exceed the maximum meal reimbursement rate for that location, and does not include alcoholic beverages or tips.

The LEA does require meal receipts as a condition for reimbursement.

Direct payment of meal expenses:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/meals/direct.php

If the LEA directly pays a commercial lodging establishment, a credit card issuer, or a travel agency for lodging expenses incurred by the LEA's employee, the LEA may also directly pay meal expenses incurred by the employee at that lodging establishment.

Prohibited meal expenses:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/meals/prohibited.php https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/docreq/meals/within.php

LEA employees may not be reimbursed for a meal expense incurred within the employee's designated headquarters unless it is mandatory and connected with training, a seminar or a conference. Justification documentation is required. Supporting documentation must include a determination by the sponsor of the training, seminar or conference that the meal was mandatory and connected with the training, seminar or conference.

LEA employees may not be reimbursed for a meal expense incurred while not conducting LEA business unless an exception applies. LEA business does not include the breakdown of a personally owned vehicle or any occurrence not connected with an LEA employee's official duties.

Tips or gratuities paid in conjunction with meal expenses are generally not reimbursable. (State rules are more restrictive than federal rules.) A "mandatory" service charge may only be reimbursed if the service charge is imposed by an establishment and cannot be refused by the customer.

LEA employees may not be reimbursed for the purchase of an alcoholic beverage.

Non-Overnight Meals:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/nonover/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/docreq/meals/nonover.php

An LEA employee may be reimbursed for non-overnight meal expenses, if allowed by local policy. If an employee on non-overnight travel receives reimbursement for meals, this amount would be considered income and must be reported on the employee's W-2 tax form.

An LEA is not required to reimburse for non-overnight meals but may choose to do so by authorization of the LEA's chief administrator. The authorization may be provided on either a case-by-case or a blanket basis. If the chief administrator has authorized meal expense reimbursements on a blanket basis, it must be documented in the LEA's internal policy. The LEA must provide the original or copy of that authorization to the Comptroller's office, upon request. If the chief administrator has authorized meal expense reimbursements on a case-by-case (reimbursement-by-reimbursement basis), only the supporting documentation for each reimbursement must include that authorization.

If local policy allows reimbursement for meals for a non-overnight stay, the expense must be incurred on a day that the employee conducts state business outside of his or her designated headquarters. Travel must begin at one duty point and end at another. The meal expense is only reimbursable if the employee is outside of his or her designated headquarters for at least six consecutive hours. The cost of meals for travel lasting less than six consecutive hours is not allowable to be charged to the grant.

Regardless of the time of day of the travel, mileage to and from the employee's home or location other than a duty point is not allowable to be charged to the grant.

In the absence of local policy allowing meal reimbursement for a non-overnight stay, no reimbursement shall be made from the grant for this purpose.

If local policy allows reimbursement for meals for a non-overnight stay, the employee may be reimbursed for the actual cost of the meal, not to exceed \$36, according to the Comptroller's Travel Reimbursement Rates accessed at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php

Reducing meal reimbursement rate to increase lodging rate: https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/redmeal.php

For both in-state and out-of-state travel, the traveler may claim less than the maximum meal reimbursement rate for a duty point and use the amount of the reduction to increase the maximum

lodging reimbursement rate for the duty point (i.e., up to the rate prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual) For instance, if the traveler chooses to stay in a hotel that costs \$10 more a night than the allowable maximum for lodging, the traveler can apply \$10 of the maximum available for meal reimbursement toward the lodging rate. If the traveler chooses to apply meal reimbursement to lodging, the maximum meal reimbursement rate is reduced by the same amount (applying \$10 of the meal reimbursement to lodging would reduce the meal reimbursement by \$10).

NOTE: The opposite case does not apply; that is, a traveler may *not* reduce the amount spent on lodging and increase the amount spent on meals. Under no circumstances may a traveler be reimbursed from grant funds for meals at a rate that exceeds the rates prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual.

Lodging:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/index.php

An LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for lodging expenses incurred on a day that the employee conducts LEA business outside of his or her designated headquarters. The lodging expense may only be reimbursed if it is incurred at a commercial lodging established. The employee may only be reimbursed for his or her actual lodging expense not to exceed the maximum lodging reimbursement rate (prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual).

An LEA employee may not be reimbursed for a lodging expense incurred while not conducting LEA business unless an exception applies. See page [] for exceptions.

Lodging expenses incurred the night before LEA business begins and the night after LEA business ends are reimbursable. Lodging expensed incurred more than one night before or after the LEA business begins or ends are not reimbursable unless the expenses are incurred to qualify for discount airfare or if travel to or from the duty point reasonably requires more than one day.

Lodging Reimbursements:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/reimburse.php

An LEA employee may only be reimbursed for his or her actual lodging expense, not to exceed the maximum lodging reimbursement rate for that location. LEAs must use the federal rates provided by the General Services Administration (GSA) for both in-state and out-of-state travel within the contiguous United States.

Please refer to the rates prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual.

Under certain circumstances, the maximum lodging rate may be increased. See "Reducing meal reimbursement rate to increase lodging rate" on page [] and "Requesting a higher maximum lodging reimbursement rate" on page [].

Contract hotels

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/contract.php

The LEA must use contract travel services whenever those services provide the most efficient travel resulting in the total lowest cost.

Hotel Occupancy Taxes:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/hotelocc/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/hotelocc/educational.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/hotelocc/outside.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/hotelocc/maximum.php

LEAs are usually exempt from Texas state sales tax on lodging but are not exempt from any city taxes or other taxes imposed for lodging. An employee of an agency that qualifies as an educational organization is exempt from paying the state hotel occupancy tax. The employee is not exempt from paying the county or municipal hotel occupancy tax.

Employees may be reimbursed for applicable taxes, but may not be reimbursed for Texas state sales tax if the traveler fails to present the Texas Hotel Occupancy Tax Exemption Certificate to the hotel. It is the responsibility of the employee to present the exemption form to the hotel to claim exemption from the state tax for LEA-related business travel. An employee must be reimbursed for a hotel occupancy or similar tax from which the employee is legally exempt, but only if the employee properly claims the exemption and the commercial lodging establishment refused to honor it.

Copies of the Texas Hotel Occupancy Tax Exemption Certificate may be obtained from the Robert Lee ISD Business Office.

An LEA employee traveling outside Texas is entitled to be reimbursed for his or her required payment of hotel occupancy or similar taxes. However, an LEA employee traveling outside Texas may not be reimbursed for a hotel occupancy or similar tax that applicable law allows to be rebated or refunded to the employee if the LEA requires the employee to claim the rebate or refund.

For both in-state and out-of-state travel, the hotel taxes are considered an incidental expense and not as a lodging expense for the purpose of the maximum reimbursement rate for lodging expenses.

When an LEA employee is entitled to be reimbursed for payment of a hotel occupancy or similar tax and the lodging amount incurred exceeds the maximum allowable lodging rate, the following calculation methods for the tax reimbursement must be used:

If the tax is calculated as a percentage of the lodging rate, then the amount of the reimbursement is equal to the percentage multiplied by the maximum that may be reimbursed to the employee for lodging expenses. For a detailed explanation of this rule, refer to the examples located at: https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/hotelocc/maximum.php

Cancellation Charges:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/cancel.php

The LEA may reimburse an employee for a cancellation charge if the charge is incurred: (1) for a reason related to LEA business, or (2) for a reason related to LEA business that could not be conducted because of a natural disaster, or (3) because an employee was unable to use transportation that was paid in advance to obtain a cost savings because that employee was ill or had a personal emergency.

Direct payment of lodging expenses:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/direct.php

The LEA may directly pay a commercial lodging establishment, a credit card issuer or a travel agency for lodging expenses incurred by the LEA's employees. The amount of the LEA's direct payment of a lodging expense may not exceed the amount that would have been reimbursed to an LEA employee for that expense. Applicable hotel occupancy taxes may be included in the direct payment.

Lease of an apartment or house:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/lease.php

According to State law, an apartment or house rental expense may be reimbursed if: (1) The purpose of the rental is the conservation of LEA funds, and (2) The LEA reasonably anticipates that the employee will be using the apartment or house while conducting LEA business throughout the term of the lease. Application fees and other mandatory costs associated with applying for rental of the apartment or house are reimbursable.

The LEA allows does not allow leasing of an apartment or house.

Lodging receipt requirements:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/receipt.php

For an LEA employee to be reimbursed for a lodging expense, the employee must provide proof that the lodging expense was incurred. This normally takes the form of a lodging receipt.

A lodging receipt issued by a commercial lodging establishment, a travel agency or a broker is acceptable and must include the following: (1) The name and address of the commercial lodging establishment, and (2) The name of the employee, and (3) The single room rate, and (4) A daily itemization of the lodging charges, and (5) Proof of payment.

A receipt that has been altered by any person other than the entity issuing the receipt is unacceptable. A receipt to which additional information has been added is considered unaltered if the information does not conflict with the original information on the receipt. The paper version of a receipt delivered through the Internet or electronic mail by a commercial lodging establishment, travel agency or broker is considered original.

If a lodging receipt is unavailable, the supporting documentation must include the cancelled check or credit card slip used to pay the lodging expense, the credit card billing on which the lodging charges appear or a copy of the receipt, check, slip or billing.

Requesting a higher maximum lodging reimbursement rate: https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/reqhigher.php

The head of the LEA or designee may determine that local conditions necessitate an increase in the lodging rate for a particular location for both in-state and out-of-state travel. This determination must be documented internally by the LEA and made available upon request during post-payment audit.

A sample request form may be accessed at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/Sample_Max_Lodging_Form.pdf

A sample calculation table may be accessed at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/Sample_Calculation_Table.pdf

Sharing Lodging:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/sharing.php

LEA employees are not required to share lodging, but if they voluntarily choose to share lodging, the following rules apply:

When at least two LEA employees share lodging, the LEA reimburses each employee for his or her share of the lodging expense. For each traveler, the reimbursement may not exceed the maximum lodging reimbursement rate. When only one of the individuals sharing lodging is an LEA employee, the employee may only be reimbursed the room rate for a single occupancy or the applicable maximum lodging reimbursement rate, whichever amount is less.

Each employee must submit a travel voucher to receive reimbursement.

Example of two LEA employees sharing lodging: Carol and Jennifer are employed by the same LEA and are planning an out-of-state business trip. The maximum lodging rate for the area where they will be staying is \$90. The women would prefer to stay at a specific hotel that is most convenient to the location of their business meeting. The only problem is that the room rate for this hotel is \$140. Carol and Jennifer decide to share a room so they can stay in the hotel of their choice. The women are charged the \$140 per night, but since each woman would be allowed up to \$90 per night if booked separately, the lodging cost is reimbursable. Carol and Jennifer may each claim their share of the lodging expense, which is \$70 per night.

Lodging Reimbursements:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/reimburse.php

An LEA employee may only be reimbursed for his or her actual lodging expense, not to exceed the maximum lodging reimbursement rate for that location. LEAs must use the federal rates provided by the General Services Administration (GSA) for both in-state and out-of-state travel within the contiguous United States.

Please refer to the rates prescribed in the Meals and Lodging section of this manual.

Under certain circumstances, the maximum lodging rate may be increased. See "Reducing meal reimbursement rate to increase lodging rate" and "Requesting a higher maximum lodging reimbursement rate".

Inability to obtain reasonable lodging within the duty point:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/meallodg/lodging/inability.php

An LEA employee may be reimbursed for lodging and meals obtained outside of Texas if he or she was unable to obtain reasonable lodging within the duty point. The lodging expense reimbursement may not exceed the maximum lodging reimbursement rate for the location where the lodging is obtained.

In this situation, the meal expense reimbursement may not exceed the greater of: (1) the maximum meal reimbursement rate for the LEA employee's duty point; or (2) the maximum meal reimbursement rate for the location where the lodging is obtained.

Packaged travel arrangements:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/packaged.php

If an LEA or LEA employee purchases a package of at least two travel arrangements (i.e., meals, lodging, transportation, incidental expenses, registration fees), each type is reimbursable only to the extent it would have been reimbursable had it not been included in the package. The travel voucher form must separately state the cost of each type of travel arrangement.

Example: Joe, an LEA employee planning a business trip out-of-town, finds a great deal for a packaged trip online. The package deal includes airfare for \$200, rental car for \$30 per day and lodging for \$90 per day. If Joe were to book the airfare separately, it would have cost \$400. Reimbursement of each cost is limited to what would have been reimbursable if it had not been included in the package. For example, the applicable lodging rate for the area is only \$85, so the additional \$5 spent on lodging is not reimbursable. When Joe submits his travel voucher for reimbursement, he will need to include documentation that states separately each type of travel cost combined in the package.

Lost or stolen tickets or similar items:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/lost.php

An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a ticket or similar item that has been lost or stolen only if the LEA determines that the loss or theft occurred despite the employee's exercise of reasonable care to safeguard the item.

If an LEA employee is reimbursed for a ticket or similar item, and the item is subsequently lost or stolen because of their failure to exercise reasonable care to safeguard it, the employee is liable to the LEA for its value.

Training seminars conducted by an LEA for its employees: https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/training.php

To reduce travel expenditures, an LEA must use interactive television, video conference technology and telephone conferences to the greatest extent possible. An LEA employee may not

be reimbursed for a travel expense associated with a training seminar conducted by his or her LEA for its employees, unless the LEA's chief administrator or designee certifies that the LEA: (1) does not possess interactive television or video conference facilities at the designated headquarters of the employees attending the seminar; and (2) cannot purchase or lease those facilities at a cost less than the total travel expenses associated with the seminar; and (3) does not have access to another agency's facilities at the same location.

Discounts and travel expenses at no cost:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/disc/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/disc/incurred.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/disc/discounts.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/disc/discair.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/disc/freqlodg.php

Discounts on travel expenses:

An LEA employee may not be reimbursed for a travel expense unless the employee has incurred the expense. Therefore, an LEA employee may not be reimbursed for the value or cost of a discount on a travel expense unless the employee paid money to obtain the discount. If the employee receives a discount as a benefit of making unrelated purchases or conducting unrelated business with the provider of the discount, the discount is considered to be provided free to the employee.

If an employee paid money to obtain a discount, the employee may be reimbursed the lesser of: (1) the cost of obtaining the discount; and (2) the amount of the discount; and (3) the maximum that may be reimbursed to a state employee for the type of travel expense incurred.

Example: Rosie is an LEA employee who uses her personal credit card for most of her monthly purchases because her credit card company offers a bonus structure for use of the card. Rosie is able to trade in "points" that she earns from her credit card purchases for air miles. Rosie decides to use her air miles for an LEA-related business trip, and therefore she does not incur any out-of-pocket costs for the airfare. She would like to claim what the ticket would have cost her on a travel voucher. Rosie is not able to do so because she has not incurred an airfare expense for reimbursement purposes.

Expenses must actually be incurred to be eligible for reimbursement:

An LEA employee may not be reimbursed for a travel expense unless the employee has incurred the expense. For example, an employee who receives free transportation or lodging in exchange for mileage, points or other non-monetary credits has not incurred an expense for reimbursement purposes.

Expenses incurred while qualifying for discount airfare:

An LEA employee may be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred while staying extra days at a duty point to qualify for discount airfare if: (1) the amount of the reimbursement plus the amount of the discount airfare is less than the contract airfare or average coach airfare that would be available had the employee not stayed extra days at the duty point; and (2) the expenses are the same type of expenses incurred during the other days at the duty point; and (3) the employing LEA determines that the employee's absence for the extra days is not detrimental.

<u>Discounts for frequent use of a commercial lodging establishment</u>: A 1984 opinion issued by the State Ethics Advisory Commission limits the use of travel discounts or bonuses earned from travel paid with public funds. Such a discount or bonus can only be used for a private purpose if it cannot be used for a public purpose. Each LEA must determine whether a discount or bonus can be used for a public purpose.

An LEA employee must not misuse government property or other things of value belonging to the agency that come into the employee's by virtue of the employee's office or employment. However, a discount or award given for travel, such as frequent flyer miles, rental car or hotel discounts or food coupons, are not things of valued belonging to the government for purposes of this section. This is due to the administrative difficulty and cost involved in recapturing the discount or award for a governmental entity.

Exceptions:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/index.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/medcare.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/funerals.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/disaster.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/leave.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/leave.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/unrelated/illness.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/weekend.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/otheragy.php

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/except/multiple.php

Generally, in order for a travel expense to be reimbursable, it must be related to LEA business. However, there are certain circumstances that allow for reimbursement of expenses not related to LEA business.

A travel expense not related to LEA business is not reimbursable unless it is included in the exceptions in this section:

Medical care for traveling LEA employees: As additional compensation to an LEA employee, the employee may be reimbursed for a travel expense incurred while obtaining medical care for the employee if: (1) the expense is incurred outside the employee's designated headquarters; and (2) the purpose of the employee traveling outside the employee's designated headquarters was to conduct LEA business; and (3) waiting to receive the care until the employee returns to the employee's designated headquarters would be unreasonable; and (4) the expense would have been reimbursable had it been incurred while conducting LEA business; and (5) the expense is incurred only while traveling to the nearest appropriate medical care facility.

Example: Mike, an LEA employee traveling on LEA business outside his designated headquarters has the misfortune of catching the flu. He is unable to perform his duties and determines it is necessary to visit the nearest appropriate hospital prior to returning home. He drives his personal vehicle to and from the hospital. The mileage Mike incurs is reimbursable at the applicable reimbursement rate.

Attending funerals: An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a travel expense incurred while attending the funeral of an individual who was an LEA employee or board member if: (1) the LEA determines that the employee's attendance at the funeral is appropriate under the circumstances; and (2) the expense is reimbursed only to the extent it could have been reimbursed had it been incurred while conducting LEA business.

<u>Natural disaster or other occurrence</u>: An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a travel expense incurred as a result of attempting to conduct LEA business if: (1) the employee is unable to conduct the business because of a natural disaster or other natural occurrence; and (2) the expense would be reimbursable had the LEA business been conducted.

<u>Travel expenses incurred while on leave</u>: An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a travel expense incurred while using personal or compensatory leave if: (1) the leave is used while the employee is away from their designated headquarters; and (2) the primary purpose of the employee's being away is to conduct LEA business; and (3) the LEA determines that returning the employee to their designated headquarters while using the leave would not be practical or cost-effective; and (4) the expense is incurred in the duty point at which the employee is conducting LEA business; and (5) the expense is a type of expense that the employee incurred or would have incurred while conducting LEA business.

Example: Julie is an LEA employee headquartered in Houston. She travels to Dallas to conduct LEA business. Julie attends business meetings in Dallas on Monday and Tuesday and has another business meeting in Dallas on Friday. Julie's employer determines it would not be cost-effective to reimburse her to return to Houston, her headquarters, and then back to Dallas, her duty point, on Friday to resume LEA business. Therefore, she may be reimbursed for meal, lodging and

transportation expenses incurred at the duty point while she is on leave. The expenses she incurs both on personal leave and while conducting LEA business are only reimbursable up to the applicable maximum reimbursable rates. If Julie decides to drive her vehicle to a location outside the duty point or incurs meals at a location outside the duty point, the expenses would not be reimbursable.

Travel to a duty point or designated headquarters while on personal or compensatory leave: An LEA employee who is on leave may be required by the LEA to leave a location outside of the employee's designated headquarters to travel to a duty point that is also outside of headquarters. The employee may be reimbursed for the travel expenses incurred. The reimbursable expenses are limited to the amount of travel expenses that would have been incurred had the employee traveled from his or her headquarters directly to the duty point. Note: The expenses are only reimbursable if the travel to the duty point is from a location other than the employee's residence and the employee could not have reasonably anticipated that the business travel would be necessary before going on leave outside of the employee's headquarters.

Return to a designated headquarters while on personal or compensatory leave: An LEA employee who is on leave may be required by the LEA to leave a location outside of the employee's headquarters to return to that headquarters. The employee may be reimbursed for the travel expenses incurred while returning to the designated headquarters. If the employee resumes the leave, he or she may also be reimbursed for expenses incurred while traveling back to the location at which the employee was staying on leave or to the proper location on the employee's itinerary. Note: The expenses are only reimbursable if the travel to the headquarters is from a location other than the employee's residence and the employee could not have reasonably anticipated that the business travel would be necessary before going on leave outside of the employee's headquarters.

Example: Ron, an LEA employee on vacation in New Mexico, is called back to his office in Dallas by his supervisor during an emergency situation at the LEA. He travels from New Mexico to Dallas and completes the LEA duties required by his supervisor. He then returns to New Mexico for the remainder of his vacation. Ron may be reimbursed for reasonable travel costs incurred to get him to Dallas to conduct his business and then back to New Mexico to complete his vacation.

<u>Travel expenses incurred while returning to a designated headquarters because of illness or a personal emergency</u>: An LEA employee may be reimbursed for a travel expense incurred when the employee returns from a duty point to his or her designated headquarters before LEA business is completed because of an illness or a personal emergency.

Spending the weekend away from a designated headquarters: An LEA may determine whether an employee should (1) remain at the employee's duty point during the weekend or (2) return to the employee's designated headquarters.

- An employee may be reimbursed for a transportation expense incurred while returning to the headquarters and then going back to the duty point after the weekend if the LEA determines it is most beneficial for the employee to return to the headquarters.
- An employee may be reimbursed for weekend travel expenses at the duty point if the LEA determines it is most beneficial for the employee to remain at the duty point over the weekend.
 The reimbursable expenses are limited to the types of expenses the employee incurred on other days while conducting LEA business.
- o If an employee is authorized by the LEA to leave a duty point to travel to a location other than the employee's designated headquarters over the weekend, the employee may be reimbursed for expenses limited to the types of expenses the employee incurred on other days while conducting LEA business.

Example: Anna is an LEA employee headquartered in Dallas. She flies to Albuquerque on a Monday morning in November to conduct LEA business. The LEA business begins Monday afternoon, temporarily ends Friday afternoon, and resumes the following Monday. Anna's LEA reviews the amount it would cost to fly Anna back to Dallas on Friday and then fly back to Albuquerque on Monday. The LEA determines that the estimated meal, lodging, and transportation reimbursement for Anna to stay the weekend in Albuquerque would be less than the cost of additional airfare. The LEA advised Anna that it would be most cost-effective for her to stay the weekend in Albuquerque and complete her LEA business the following week. The lodging, meal and transportation expenses Anna incurs over the weekend are reimbursable up to the applicable maximum reimbursement rates.

<u>Reimbursement of travel expenses of another LEA's employee</u>: An LEA may reimburse a travel expense incurred by another LEA's employee if that employee incurred the expense while providing services to the reimbursing LEA.

<u>Multiple reimbursements of a travel expense prohibited</u>: An LEA employee may only be reimbursed for a travel expense from one source. If an employee receives a travel reimbursement from a person other than the employee's employer, and the amount of the reimbursement is less than the expenses incurred, the employee may seek reimbursement from its employer only for the difference.

Example: David, an LEA employee headquartered in Austin, travels on LEA business to Dallas. David is also a member of a professional organization that will pay for his lodging cost while in Dallas because he will attend one of the organization's functions during one night of his stay. Since the professional organization is paying for David's lodging cost, he may not claim a lodging cost on his travel voucher for reimbursement from his employer. David may claim his other reimbursable expenses incurred for LEA business, such as meals, transportation, incidentals, etc.

Death of an LEA employee:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/misc/death.php

If an LEA employee dies while conducting LEA business at a duty point outside his or her designated headquarters, an LEA may pay the expense of preparing and transporting the employee's remains and personal property to the employee's designated headquarters or another location designated by the executor or administrator of the employee's estate. If transport is to a location other than the designated headquarters, then the amount of the LEA's payment may not exceed the amount that would have been paid for transport to the headquarters.

The LEA may reimburse the employee's estate for appropriate lodging and transportation expenses incurred by the employee at the duty point.

Student Travel:

Student travel is only allowable with state and/or local funds.

Travel Advances:

Travel advances are only allowable with state and/or local funds.

8.4.3 Travel Documentation:

Travel costs must be properly documented to be reimbursable. The employee must document travel costs with a travel voucher or other comparable documentation. Auditable documentation must include the following at a minimum:

- Name of the individual claiming travel reimbursement
- Destination and purpose of the trip, including how it was necessary to accomplish the objectives of the grant project
- Dates of travel
- Actual mileage (not to exceed reimbursement at the maximum allowable rate)
- Actual amount expended on lodging per day, with a receipt attached (may not exceed the maximum allowable)
- Actual amount expended on meals per day (may not exceed the maximum allowable; tips and gratuities and alcohol are not reimbursable)
- Actual amount expended on public transportation, such as taxis and shuttles
- Actual amount expended on a rental car, with a receipt attached and justification for why
 a rental car was necessary and how it was more cost effective than alternate transportation;
 receipts for any gasoline purchased for the rental car must be attached (mileage is not
 reimbursed for a rental car only the cost of gasoline is reimbursed)
- Actual amount expended on incidentals, such as hotel taxes (Texas state sales tax are not reimbursable), copying of materials, and other costs associated with the travel

Total amount reimbursed to the employee

Reimbursement of travel expenditures require original itemized receipts. A credit card charge slip is not considered an itemized receipt.

Travel costs that are not supported by proper documentation as described above are not allowable to be charged to TEA grants and are subject to disallowance by state and federal auditors and monitors.

Access meal and lodging reimbursement information and rates through the Texas State Comptroller's website at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/index.php

Travel Reimbursement Rates are located at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fm/travel/travelrates.php

Domestic Maximum Per Diem Rates are located at:

http://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877

State travel laws and rules are located at:

https://fmx.cpa.state.tx.us/fmx/travel/textravel/index.php

8.4.4 Travel Requests and Approval Process

The immediate administrative supervisor authorizes all travel related to their respective campus/department.

Purchase request forms for travel-related expenses must follow the same procedures as other expenses and must be approved prior to travel.

Purchase orders must include the date of travel.

Distract staff are authorized to initiate travel requests. The administrative staff are authorized for approving travel requests.

Local travel is considered to be within 100 mile radius. Overnight stay requires approval by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.

Out-of-district and out-of-state travel require(s) an approved travel request form which must be attached to the purchase order. Out-of-State travel with federal funds is not allowable without prior approval from TEA. Refer to TEA procedures.

Out-of-state travel requires approval of the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager. The approval must be attached to the purchase order. Out-of-State travel with federal funds is not allowable without prior approval from TEA. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager reviews TEA guidelines to determine if allowable with the federal grant program and approves the request to seek prior approval by TEA.

All hotel reservations must be made through the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.

When booking, consider the distance to the business destination, airport, restaurants, etc., in choosing a hotel site. Standard room accommodation will be reimbursable. Travelers must reimburse the LEA for any costs related to an upgrade in room accommodation. The employee is responsible for notifying the hotel in the event of travel plan changes. An employee who does not notify the hotel of a cancellation before the deadline established by the hotel may not expense the no-show charge for reimbursement.

Movies and incidentals do not meet the IRS interpretation of travel expenditures and are not allowable at any time. The traveler must review his or her invoice and settle charges with the hotel with his or her personal credit care for room service, movies, personal phone calls, etc., prior to check out. Business-related fax charges are reimbursable. Business-related Internet connection fees are reimbursable with approval by the supervisor. The cost of personal cellular phone usage is not reimbursable except in extreme emergency. A supervisor must approve these charges.

Rental cars only used upon approval from district superintendent. The LEA assumes no responsibility for personal autos used for company business. Personal vehicles should not be used for extended trips as the mileage charges are not economical to the LEA. Personal vehicles may be used for extended trips with prior approval by the supervisor and justification.

All rental car reservations must be made through the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager. As a general rule, an intermediate or smaller model must be rented whenever possible. When three or more employees are traveling together, a full size care is permissible.

The LEA is insured for rental vehicles. Travelers are advised to refuse insurance coverage offered by car rental companies since such coverage would be a duplication and a non-reimbursable expense.

The following expenses in the operation of rental cars are not reimbursable: refueling charges for not returning the rental car with a full tank of gas (unless sufficient reason for not refueling can be given); pre-paid fuel charges; parking or traffic violation tickets.

Rental cars are for business use only and should not be used for personal use, without prior approval by the supervisor and justification. LEA insurance does not cover a rental car used by an employee for personal use. The employee will be responsible for any additional insurance coverage and/or any damage to the vehicle if used for personal use.

If an employee books an airfare that is not the fare recommended by the travel agent, the employee may be responsible for the difference between the recommended fare and the accepted fare, unless prior approval by the supervisor is received. When travelers make unapproved modifications to travel arrangements that result in additional charges, those additional charges may not be reimbursable and may be the responsibility of the traveler unless authorized by the supervisor and approved by the business office.

Combined Business and Personal Travel: If an employee combines business with personal travel, the portion of expense constituting the employee's own reimbursable business expense must be separated and reported as such. The business-related expense may not exceed the amount of reimbursable expense which would have been incurred had the trip been made strictly for business purposes. When a personal auto rather than air travel is used due to personal reasons, mileage reimbursement may not exceed the economy class airfare for that destination and may not exceed local mileage actually incurred. The cost of meals, lodging, and incidental expenditures en route that exceed the costs that would have been incurred if traveling by air are not reimbursable since they would have been avoided had transportation been by air instead of auto.

Payments for expenses incurred by spouses are considered illegal gifts of public funds unless the spouse is representing the LEA in an official capacity. Under no circumstances will the LEA reimburse for expenses that were incurred for individuals not representing the LEA for business purposes.

The Trip Request form must be used to document travel activity.

Mileage will be reimbursed at the state approved rate.

Meals and lodging will be reimbursed at the locally approved rate. Local funds are used to pay the difference between the local rate and state rate if applicable.

Each trip must be separately documented.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for the disbursement of funds for travel reimbursement.

Prior Authorization

Field Trips:

RLISD provides assurance that prior approval will be requested from TEA before using federal funds for costs associated with field trips.

• Hosting a Conference:

RLISD provides assurance that prior approval will be requested from TEA before using federal funds for costs associated with hosting a conference.

Out-of-State Travel:

RLISD provides assurance that prior approval will be requested from TEA before using federal funds for costs associated with Out-of-State travel.

9.0 Program-Specific Fiscal Compliance

IDEA-B:

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will monitor compliance with Maintenance of Effort (MOE) on a regular basis, but at least semi-annually. Necessary adjustments will be made prior to the end of the fiscal year to ensure compliance. MOE analysis required for the Eligibility Standard to be reported in the BS6016 Fiscal Compliance schedule of the Special Education Consolidated Grant application will be performed and the data provided to the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager prior to the submittal deadline for the new grant year's initial application. Documentation of the calculations for the Compliance Standard and the Eligibility Standard will be maintained business office.

The superintendent or business manager will determine if the LEA qualifies for the Voluntary Reduction option for MOE and will notify the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager in a timely manner for reporting on the BS6016 Fiscal Compliance schedule of the Special Education Consolidated Grant application. The analysis will be performed prior to the submittal deadline for the new grant year's initial application and performed again when the IDEA-B maximum entitlements are released by TEA. Documentation of the calculation will be maintained in the business office.

If the LEA chooses to exercise the option of Voluntary Reduction, the superintendent or business manager will ensure compliance with the eligibility criteria. The superintendent or business manager will track the "freed up" funds by using a local option code to ensure these funds are spent on ESEA activities. Documentation of the tracking of expenditures of the "freed up" funds on ESEA activities will be maintained business office.

The Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager will perform the Excess Cost calculation twice a year. An initial, estimated calculation will be performed prior to the submittal deadline for the new grant year's initial Special Education Consolidated grant application. A final calculation will be performed with prior year actual, audited data when the data becomes available. Documentation of the calculation and supporting documentation will be maintained business office.

The Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager will monitor compliance with the federal requirement to provide proportionate share services to parentally-placed private school children with disabilities for the IDEA-B program. The proportionate share requirement is not applicable to charter schools or to any ISD that does not have private schools (including homeschooled children) in their jurisdiction. The superintendent or business manager will compile the data required on the Private School schedule of the Special Education Consolidated grant application and provide to the Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager prior to the submittal deadline for the new grant year's initial application. The Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager will ensure all applicable parties are aware of the proportionate share amount determined during receipt of the initial IDEA-B entitlement and the revised proportionate share amount determined when TEA releases maximum entitlements. The Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager will track proportionate share expenditures by using a local option code to ensure funds are used for the intended purpose and to monitor unused proportionate share funds carried over to the subsequent year. If the proportionate share carryover funds are not spent toward the end of the carryover year and every attempt has been made to spend the proportionate share funds on parentally-placed private school children with disabilities, the LEA may then spend the funds on public school children with disabilities. The Wall ISD Superintendent and Wall ISD Business Manager will make the necessary adjustments, if applicable. Documentation of the calculations and monitoring of funds and expenditures will be maintained business office.

10.0 Cash Management

10.1 Cash Management for Federal Funds 2 CFR §200.305

The LEA will comply with applicable methods and procedures for payments that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury or pass-through entity (such as TEA) and the disbursement by the LEA, whether the payment is made by electronic funds transfer, or issuance or redemption of checks, warrants, or payment by other means. 2 CFR §200.305(b)

Generally, the LEA receives payment of federal funds from the Texas Education Agency (TEA) on a reimbursement basis. However, if the LEA receives an advance in federal grant funds, the LEA will remit interest earned on the advanced payment to the federal agency, according to the EDGAR requirements.

The business office monitors the drawdowns to determine whether the payment of federal funds to the LEA is a reimbursement or an advance payment. If an advance payment, the business office ensures compliance with the interest requirements.

10.2.1 Payment Methods

Reimbursements: The LEA initially charges federal grant expenditures to nonfederal funds and then seeks reimbursement with federal funds.

According to TEA guidance, to be considered a reimbursement, an LEA draws down from TEA via the ER (Expenditure Reporting) system on or after the date the payment is mailed, delivered, or electronically delivered.

All reimbursements are based on actual disbursements, not on obligations. Reimbursements of actual expenditures do not require interest calculations.

Please see procedures on expenditure reports for federal awards.

Advances: To the extent the LEA receives advance payments of federal grant funds, the LEA will maintain written procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds and disbursement by the LEA and will ensure its financial management system meets the standards for fund control and accountability as established in EDGAR.

According to TEA guidance, if the LEA draws down federal funds from TEA via the ER (Expenditure Reporting) system <u>prior</u> to making the payment (prior to the time the payment is mailed, delivered, or electronically delivered), the draw down is considered an advance. The payment date is the actual date of disbursement, not the date encumbered or scheduled for payment according to the accounting treatment. When additional guidance is received from TEA, this section will be updated. Insert TEA's guidance on payroll accruals.]

According to 2 CFR §200.305(b)(1), the LEA will limit its advance payment requests to the minimum amounts needed and will time the advance payment to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the LEA in carrying out the purpose of the approved program or project. The timing and amount of advance payments must be as close as is administratively feasible to the actual disbursements by the LEA for direct program or project costs and the proportionate share of any allowable indirect costs. The LEA must make timely payment to

contractors in accordance with the contract provisions. The superintendent/business office determines when these payment are needed.

According to 2 CFR §200.305(b)(7)(i), the federal government and TEA must not require <u>separate</u> depository accounts for funds provided to the LEA and must not establish any eligibility requirements for depositories for funds provided to the LEA. However, the LEA will have a process in place to account for the receipt, obligation, and expenditure of funds. The LEA chooses to maintain a separate depository account for the advance payment of federal funds received from TEA.

According to 2 CFR §200.305(b)(7)(ii), advance payments of federal funds must be deposited and maintained in <u>insured</u> accounts whenever possible. The LEA's depository account is maintained in an insured account.

According to 2 CFR §200.305(b)(8), the LEA will -maintain advance payments of federal funds in <u>interest-bearing accounts</u>, **unless** an allowable exception applies: (1) The LEA receives less than \$120,000 in federal awards per year; (2) The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not be expected to earn interest in excess of \$500 per year on federal cash balances; (3) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it would not be feasible within the expected federal and non-federal cash resources; (4) A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing accounts. The LEA maintains its advance payments of federal funds in interest-bearing accounts

No federal funds are used for administrative expenses.

Any additional interest earned on federal advance payments deposited in interest-bearing accounts must be remitted to the federal agency according to the requirements of EDGAR. The interest must be remitted annually to the Department of Health and Human Services Payment Management System (PMS) through an electronic medium using either Automated Clearing House (ACH) network or a Fedwire Funds Service payment. Detailed information for submitting the earned interest is found at 2 CFR §200.305(b)(9).

The LEA calculates interest using an actual interest rate which is currently set at an interest rate determined by the district auditors as necessary.

Regardless of the date of obligation, interest is calculated from the date that the federal funds are drawn down from the ER system (for state administered programs) or the G5 system (for direct grant programs) and deposited into your depository account, until the date on which those funds are disbursed by the LEA.

Interest does not accrue if the LEA uses nonfederal funds to pay the vendor and/or employees prior to the funds being drawn down, because that method would be a reimbursement rather than an advance.

10.2.2 Expenditure Reporting System (TEA's system)

Reimbursement requests will be made via the TEA Expenditure Reporting System.

Reimbursements: Reimbursement requests will be submitted via the TEA Expenditure Reporting (ER) system.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for reviewing cumulative expenditures for federal grants and preparing the required expenditure reports for federal awards, at least monthly. The review should occur after the processing of payroll. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager or designee will generate a General Ledger Summary report in the TxEIS for each federal grant. The actual expenditures will be totaled by class object code. Any payroll liabilities that appear in the balance sheet accounts will be deducted from the 6100 object code total. This will prevent drawing down more cash than has actually been expended, thereby keeping the draw down as a reimbursement. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will reconcile the ledgers for each federal award to confirm that only actual expenditures are requested (confirming that the payment has been mailed or delivered.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager or designee will complete the Federal Program Control Sheets used to track grant expenditures. Each program award is tracked on a separate Control Sheet. Every draw from the ER system will be recorded on the appropriate Control Sheet. This will allow the superintendent or designee to determine the last time a draw was made. If cumulative expenditures have increased since the last draw, a new draw will be initiated.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for reviewing and approving federal expenditure reports through the certification process of the ER system. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures draw down requests will not exceed the threshold amount established by TEA. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures final expenditure reports, and revised final expenditure reports, if applicable, are submitted by the deadlines established by TEA.

The Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will notify the superintendent that records cash receipts for the LEA, of each draw and to which account code(s) to post the revenue.]

Consistent with state and federal requirements, the LEA will maintain source documentation supporting the federal expenditures (invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, etc.) and documentation supporting the draw down requests and will make such documentation available for the TEA's review upon request. The business office will maintain all documentation.

Advances: Advance payment requests will be submitted via the TEA Expenditure Reporting (ER) system.

Please see procedures on requesting advance payments with federal funds.

10.3 Local Cash/Check Handling

All cash and checks will be presented to the business office on a daily basis. No post-dated checks will be accepted. Funds must not be kept in classrooms, personal wallets or purses, or at home. No funds are to be deposited in personal bank accounts with the intent to reimburse. No cash purchases may be made from these funds; every dollar collected must be receipted and deposited to the business manager.

The business manager will receipt and deposit all monies on a daily basis in the bank or secure overnight in a locked campus safe if the deposit cannot be made the same day. Personal employee checks may not be cashed from monies collected at the campus or LEA level to ensure an adequate audit trail of all funds collected by the LEA.

Refer to the LEA's Robert Lee ISD Activity Fund Procedures Manual for detailed procedures.

10.3.1 Petty Cash

The LEA does not authorize the use of Petty Cash.

10.3.2 Check Processing

State law requires that LEAs pay all invoices within thirty (30) calendar days to avoid penalty and interest charges.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures invoices are paid within thirty (30) days.

The LEA's checks are processed on Friday of each week. The business office determines the date that vendors will be paid; employees should avoid making prior commitments to vendors about payment disbursements.

All payments must be pre-authorized by an approved purchase order. No checks or payments will be issued without an approved purchase order on file prior to travel or purchases.

Returned Checks

In the event that a check written to any LEA campus, club, or organization is returned unpaid by the bank, the LEA will redeposit the check electronically. In the event that the agent is unsuccessful in collecting returned checks, the agent will send those checks to the Tom Green County District Attorney's office for collection.

The campus or department that accepted the bad check will be notified that the amount of the check has been deducted from their account, pending recovery of the bad check. The campus or department will be notified once the check has been recovered and credited back to their account.

10.4 Campus Activity Funds

Campus activity funds are funds generated by teachers, sponsors, or the principal as a result of fundraising, vending, or other approved campus activities. These funds, in accordance with local policy, may be used for activities of the students, faculty, staff, or campus.

The collection and disbursement of campus activity funds must comply with the LEA's Activity Fund Procedures Manual.

10.5 Student Activity Funds

Student activity funds are held by the school as trustee to be expended only for the purpose authorized by the student club, class, or organization. All student activity funds must be expended exclusively for the benefit of students.

The collection and disbursement of student activity funds must comply with the LEA's Activity Fund Procedures Manual.

11.0 Timely Obligation of Funds

11.1 When Obligations are Made

Obligations are orders placed for property and services, contracts and sub awards made, and similar transactions during a given period that require payment by the non-Federal entity during the same or a future period. 34 CFR §200.71.

The superintendent/business office will ensure compliance of these policies.

The following table illustrates when funds are determined to be obligated under federal regulations:

If the obligation is for:	The obligation is made:
Acquisition of property	On the date which the LEA makes a binding written commitment to acquire the property
Personal services by an employee of the LEA	When the services are performed
Personal services by a contractor who is not an employee of the LEA	On the date which the LEA makes a binding written commitment to obtain the services
Public utility services	When the LEA receives the services
Travel	When the travel is taken
Rental of property	When the LEA uses the property
A pre-agreement cost that was properly approved by the Secretary under the cost principles in 2 CFR part 200, Subpart E-Cost Principles.	On the first day of the project period.

34 CFR §75.707; 34 CFR §76.707.

The Business Manager maintains RLISD NOGAs for federal grants. The Business Manager will not authorize the expenditure of federal grant funds prior to the receipt of the Notice of Grant Award (NOGA) from the Texas Education Agency or other funding agency or independent organization.

RLISD campuses and departments may negotiate contracts for goods or services but the contract may not be signed and work authorized by the contract may not begin prior to the date of receipt of the NOGA and shall end by the final day of the grant period specified in the NOGA.

The following list details timelines related to the obligation of federal grant funds. For the activities on this list, the obligation is made:

- 1. For acquisition of real property, on the date the district makes a binding written commitment to acquire the property;
- 2. For personal services performed by a district employee, on the date on which the services are performed;
- 3. For personal services performed by a contractor who is not a district employee, on the date on which the district makes a binding written commitment;
- 4. For performance of work other than personal services, on the date on which the district makes a binding written commitment;

- 5. For utility services, on the date on which the district receives the services;
- 6. For rental or real or personal property on the date when the district uses the property;
- 7. For approved pre grant award costs, on the first day of the contract period. (34 CFR 75.707)

11.2 Period of Availability of Federal Funds

All obligations must occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the grant project. 34 CFR §76.707. This period of time is known as the period of availability. The period of availability is dictated by statute and will be indicated in the GAN/NOGA. Further, certain grants have specific requirements for carryover funds that must be adhered to.

State-Administered Grants: As a general rule, state-administered federal funds are available for obligation within the year that Congress appropriates the funds for. However, given the unique nature of educational institutions, for many federal education grants, the period of availability is 27 months. Federal education grant funds are typically awarded on July 1 of each year. While the LEA will always plan to spend all current grant funds within the year the grant was appropriated for, the period of obligation for any grant that is covered by the "Tydings Amendment" is 27 months, extending from July 1 of the fiscal year for which the funds were appropriated through September 30 of the second following fiscal year. This maximum period includes a 15-month period of initial availability, plus a 12-month period for carryover. 34 CFR §76.709. For example, funds awarded on July 1, 2015 would remain available for obligation through September 30, 2017. TEA provides for the 27 month period of availability by making the funds available July 1 through September 30 of the following year and then allowing a carryover period of an additional 12 months for unused funds.

Direct Grants: In general, the period of availability for funds authorized under direct grants is identified in the GAN. On occasion, the LEA will receive direct grants.

For both state-administered and direct grants: According to 2 CFR §200.343(b), regardless of the period of availability, all obligations incurred under the award must be liquidated not later than 90 days after the end of the funding period unless an extension is authorized. Any funds not obligated within the period of availability or liquidated within the appropriate timeframe are said to lapse and must be returned to the awarding agency. 2 CFR §200.343(d). Consequently, the LEA closely monitors grant spending throughout the grant cycle.

According to TEA fiscal guidelines, all encumbrances, expenditures, and obligations of program funds must occur on or after the effective date of the grant application submitted to TEA (the date the application was received or the first day of the grant availability period, whichever is later) and within the grant beginning and ending dates listed on the NOGA. Grantees may generally enter

cumulative expenditures into the TEA Expenditure Reporting (ER) system up to 30 days following the ending date of the grant.

11.3 Carryover

State-Administered Grants: As described above, the Tydings Amendment extends the period of availability for applicable state-administered program funds. Essentially, it permits recipients to "carryover" any funds left over at the end of the initial 15 month period into the next year. These leftover funds are typically referred to as carryover funds and continue to be available for obligation for an additional 12 months. 34 CFR §76.709. Accordingly, the LEA may have multiple years of grant funds available under the same program at the same time.

Carryover funds must be used before any additional federal funds are dispersed. The business manager will track carryover funds.

Direct Grants: Grantees receiving direct grants are not covered by the 12 month Tydings period. However, under 2 CFR §200.308, direct grantees enjoy unique authority to expand the period of availability of federal funds. The LEA is authorized to extend a direct grant automatically for one 12-month period. Prior approval is not required in these circumstances; however, in order to obtain this extension, the LEA must provide written notice to the federal awarding agency at least 10 (ten) calendar days before the end of the period of performance specified in the award. This one-time extension may not be exercised merely for the purpose of using unobligated balances.

The superintendent will be responsible for any approval of extensions on direct grants.

The LEA will seek prior approval from the federal agency when the extension will not be contrary to federal statute, regulation or grant conditions and:

- The terms and conditions of the Federal award prohibit the extension;
- The extension requires additional Federal funds; or
- The extension involves any change in the approved objectives or scope of the project. 2 CFR §200.308(d)(2).

The superintendent makes all approvals of grant extensions as needed.

11.4 Authorities for Grant and Funding Administration

RLISD administers federal grant funds according to the regulations in Title 2 Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR 200) which specifies the U.S. Education Department General Administrative Regulations, known as EDGAR.

The Business Manager administers state and local funds according to the regulations in the Texas Education Agency's Financial Accountability Resource Guide, known as FASRG, and local Board policies.

RLISD follows the most restrictive requirements in the provisions for budgeting and expending each source of funds. This manual specifies the most restrictive requirements and when EDGAR or FASRG regulations are to be used.

12.0 Program Income 2 CFR 200.307

12.1 Definition

Program income means gross income earned by a grant recipient that is directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the federal award during the grant's period of performance. 2 CFR §200.80.

Program Income Includes: Program income includes, but is not limited to, income from fees for services performed, the use or rental of real or personal property acquired under federal awards, the sale of commodities or items fabricated under a federal award, license fees and royalties on patents and copyrights, and principal and interest on loans made with federal award funds. 2 CFR §200.80.

Program Income Is Not: Interest earned on advances of federal funds is <u>not</u> program income. Except as otherwise provided in federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and conditions of the federal award, program income <u>does not</u> include rebates, credits, discounts, and interest earned on any of them. 2 CFR §200.80. Additionally, taxes, special assessments, levies, fines, and other such revenues raised by a recipient <u>are not</u> program income unless the revenues are specifically identified in the federal award or federal awarding agency regulations as program income. 2 CFR §200.307(c). Finally, proceeds from the sale of real property, equipment, or supplies are <u>not</u> program income. 2 CFR §200.307(d).

According to 2 CFR §200.307(a), LEAs are encouraged to earn income to defray program costs where appropriate. If authorized by federal regulations or the federal award, costs incidental to the generation of program income may be deducted from gross income to determine program income, provided these costs have not been charged to the federal award. 2 CFR §200.307(b).

According to 2 CFR §200.400(g), the LEA may not earn or keep any profit resulting from federal financial assistance, unless explicitly authorized by the terms and conditions of the federal award.

12.2 Use of Program Income

While the deduction method is the default method, the LEA always refers to the GAN/NOGA prior to determining the appropriate use of program income.

Deduction Method. The default method for the use of program income for the LEA is the deduction method. 2 CFR §200.307(e). Under the deduction method, program income is deducted from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs. Program income will only be used for current costs unless the LEA is otherwise directed by the federal awarding agency or pass-through entity (TEA). Program income that the LEA did not anticipate at the time of the federal award must be used to reduce the federal award and non-federal entity contributions rather than to increase funds committed to the project. 2 CFR §200.307(e)(1).

Addition Method. The LEA may also request prior approval from the federal awarding agency to use the addition method. Under the addition method, program income may be added to the federal award by the federal agency and the non-federal entity. The program income must then be used for the purposes and under the conditions of the federal award. 2 CFR §200.307(e)(2).

Income after the Period of Performance. There are no federal requirements governing the disposition of income earned after the end of the period of performance for the federal award, unless the federal awarding agency regulations or the terms and conditions of the federal award provide otherwise. 2 CFR §200.307(f).

The district will look for TEA guidance on the deduction method versus the addition method; how to request approval for the addition method; how to provide documentation to TEA.

13.0 Procurement System

The LEA maintains the following purchasing procedures.

13.1 Responsibility for Purchasing

I. RESPONSIBILITY FOR PURCHASING

a. Purchasing Policy

- 1. Complete purchasing policy and procedures followed by the district may be found in the Texas Education Agency <u>Financial</u>
 <u>Accountability System Resource Guide</u> (FASRG) in the Purchasing Module.
- 2. FASRG can be accessed through the TEA website at: http://www.tea.state.tx.us/school.finance/audit/resguide8/purchase/index.html
- 3. Board policies pertaining to purchasing can be accessed through the RLISD website at: www.rlisd.net

b. Purchasing Authority

1. The following persons are delegated the authority to act as agents for Robert Lee ISD in carrying out the purchasing activities of the district:

- a. Superintendent
- b. Business Manager

The Business Manager and Superintendent are responsible for overseeing a system of procurement that:

- 1. Relies on documented procedures
- 2. Establishes standards of conduct and conflict of interest;
- 3. Promotes transparency and competition;
- 4. Adheres to the most rigorous procurement standards established in either state law or federal regulation.

13.2 Purchase Methods

13.2.1 Purchasing Procedures

The Business Manager establishes procedures to manage RLISD purchasing practices and activities. The procedures ensure the conformity, rigor, and transparency of the district procurement process, and specify rules for purchasing within price thresholds and solicitation requirements, including quotes, bids and proposals.

The procedures specify and ensure that the most rigorous federal, state, or local purchasing regulations or procedures are followed (either EDGAR 2 CFR 200.200 Appendix II320, Texas Education Code §44.031, or local Board or district administrative policy), depending on the fund source and value of the goods or services being purchased.

The procedures establish annual deadlines for purchases made with federal grant funds.

RLISD campuses and departments may not "stockpile" supplies and materials with grant funds. In this instance "stockpiling" means the purchase of supplies and materials in the last calendar quarter in a way that is disproportionate to the benefit that students receive from the amount of supplies and materials purchased with grant funds.

The procedures are maintained on the RLISD departmental website.

The type of purchase procedures required depends on the cost of the item(s) being purchased.

- Procurement Documents
 - o Robert Lee ISD uses purchase orders.
 - Campus administration and business manager keep paper copies of all purchase orders. All purchase orders are pre numbered.
 - The following documentation is required on all purchase orders:
 - a description of the services to be performed or goods to be delivered;

- A location where the services are to be performed or goods to be delivered;
 and
- The amount of the purchase along with vendor name, address, etc.
- o Documentation of purchases are kept via invoices in the business manager's office.

Responsibilities

- o Campus administrators request purchase orders/requisitions.
- Campus administration fills out the purchase order and administrators provide approval.
- o Superintendent writes and approves all contracts.
- Required Number and Types of Quotations
 - o Three written bids are required for each purchase threshold.
 - o Bids are received electronically or on paper.
 - These bids must be received before a purchase order, requisition, or contract is made.
 - o Superintendent is responsible for obtaining bids.
 - o The superintendent keeps all documented records of the bid process.

In addition to these rules, sub recipients must also follow both state and local procurement rules. State and local procurement rules are often stricter than federal requirements. Accordingly, this section should be revised to account for the appropriate thresholds and purchasing procedures within each threshold amount in accordance with any state and local procurement rules. See Robert Lee ISD Board Policy for additional procurement guidelines.

13.2.2 Purchase Orders

Definition of a Purchase Order

A purchase order is an instrument used to encumber funds (setting aside funds in advance for the payment of goods and services when received or rendered). Texas Education Agency Bulletin 679, ACT 302 requires that an encumbering accounting system be in place.

According to the TEA 2010 Financial Accountability System Resource Guide, a purchase order serves as a formal order for goods, materials, and/or services from a vendor. A purchase order, once approved, is a binding commitment for an LEA to remit payment to the vendor after the item(s) and an invoice are received.

A purchase order is a purchaser's document to formalize a purchase transaction with a vendor. The purchase order should contain statements as to the quantity, description, and price of the goods or services orders; applicable terms as to payment; discounts; date of performance; transportation arrangements; and other factors or suitable references pertinent to the purchase and its execution by the vendor. Acceptance of a purchase order constitutes a contract.

Use of Purchase Orders

A purchase order, after the final approval process, is a binding commitment for the LEA to remit payment to the vendor after the LEA receives the item(s). A purchase order is also an important accounting document. It should contain information on the expenditure to be made and the account code to be charged. Once issued, the purchase order encumbers funds, which serves as an expenditure control mechanism. Finally, the purchase order is utilized in the accounts payable process as it documents that an order has been placed and is acceptable by the user; the user can make payment to the vendor upon verified and documented receipt of the goods/services.

Prior to the purchase of goods or services, a properly prepared and submitted purchase order shall be required.

Reimbursements for goods/services purchased personally will be reimbursed only if an approved purchase order is in place prior to the purchase of the goods and does not exceed the amount of the purchase order (shipping costs should be included in the purchase order). No changes, substitutions, or increases in funds may be made without approval from the business department.

All LEA personnel are required to follow the following guidelines for any purchase, regardless of fund source. In addition, Federal Program personnel will adhere to the applicable statute, regulations, and other grant requirements when making purchases. Employees who violate the LEA's purchasing procedures shall be held personally liable for the debt incurred.

Section 44.052 Texas Education Code states that a superintendent that approves any expenditure of school funds in excess of the amount appropriated for that item(s) in the adopted budget commits a Class C misdemeanor offense. Consequently, close supervision and monitoring of the availability of budget dollars and of the approval process for requisition competitive procurement are important elements of the LEA's purchasing process.

Items requiring purchase orders include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

- a) Capital Outlay/Fixed Assets (Equipment, furniture, etc.);
- b) Travel Expenses for Outside Consultants;
- c) Travel by Employees (Hotel, airfare, rental car expenditures require purchase orders; Mileage, parking, meals, and other approved incidentals may be reimbursed without a purchase order, by utilizing the Trip Request Form
- d) Registration fees for conferences;
- e) Instructional Materials (Exception: Situations which would render the purchase order

procedure impractical);

- f) Office Supplies not stocked/available through the LEA;
- g) Professional and Contracted Services (Exception: Equipment Repair).

All purchase orders require approval by superintendent and or business manager. No confirmation ("after-the-fact") purchase orders will be allowed without the justification and approval by the superintendent and/or business manager.

Requisitions:

According to the TEA 2010 Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG), a requisition is an internal document by which a campus or department of the LEA requests the purchasing department to initiate a purchase order. It is a request generated manually or electronically (through the use of automated systems) for the purchase of supplies, services, equipment, etc. The requisition should be in a standard format so that the information can be readily identified and transferred to a purchase order. If proper control procedures are used, the requisition and the purchase order can be combined on one form.

The Purchase Order Request should always include, at a minimum, the following:

- a) A description of the item(s) to be purchased (The description should be complete enough for anyone to understand the item(s) being purchased);
- b) The quantity needed/requested;
- c) The proposal number, if applicable;
- d) A suggested vendor (Use the LEA's approved vendor list, making sure a bid vendor is used, if applicable);
- e) The code of the account to be charged;
- f) Pricing, if known;
- g) Requests for requisitions for Federal Grant funds must include justification back-up from the Campus/District Needs Assessment and Improvement Plan, where applicable;
- h) Proper original signatures, dated.

Professional staff are authorized to initiate purchase requisitions. Requisitions initiated by instructional, maintenance, and support personnel are approved by the principals or department supervisor. Requisitions which require expenditures from the Special Revenue Fund are approved by the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager.

Purchase Orders:

The purchase order is the written evidence of orders placed as a result of properly initiated and approved purchase requisitions.

Once the Purchase Order Request is approved, the purchase order is generated and routed for final approval.

The purchase order should always include, at a minimum, the following:

- a) Vendor name and address;
- b) Description of goods or services, including pertinent factors, such as size, color selection, etc.;
- c) Quantity of goods;
- d) Price (per unit and in total);
- e) Account codes;
- f) Payment terms;
- g) Discounts, if any;
- h) Transportation (shipping) arrangements;
- i) Other pertinent factors, such as delivery destination;
- j) Cancellation terms.

Final approval of the purchase order is provided by Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager. The purchase order is given back to the campus and orders can then be placed. All purchase orders are mailed or faxed to vendors by the campus or department office. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager encumbers funds from the proper account.

During review and approval of requisitions and purchase orders, special attention should be given to the account coding. If there are not sufficient funds in the account the expenditure is to be coded to, the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager will request either a budget amendment or budget transfer. Expenditures that are not correctly coded will be returned to the department, causing delays in the expenditure process.

For control purposes, the business office maintains a record of all purchase orders issued. The log includes the date of submission, purchase order number, vendor name, and campus/department name.

Blanket (Open) Purchase Orders

According to the TEA 2010 Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG), a blanket purchase order is issued to a pre-approved vendor authorizing purchases from that vendor over a period of time. Blanket purchase orders are valuable because they allow the purchase of items quickly, may eliminate numerous individual purchase orders for small dollar-value items, and usually reduce paperwork and related processing costs. However, blanket purchase orders must follow certain criteria: pre-qualification of vendors, limitation on the maximum amount for purchases, a specific time frame for purchases covered by the blanket purchase order, and identification of authorized purchasers. Blanket purchase orders are issued so that supplies, materials, or services are available "as needed" by user departments.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for the pre-qualification of vendors and ensures that the number of vendors to whom blanket purchase orders are issued is limited.

Those who may make purchases under blanket purchase orders are limited to the following positions:

The superintendent will approve all blanket purchase orders.

The limitation per month per vendor is determined on an individual basis by the superintendent. Sales tax exemption forms should be provided to the vendor, as sales taxes are not reimbursed.

All blanket (open) purchase orders are generated with a broad description and closed prior to year-end. All receipts must be received 15 calendar days prior to the budget end date to process payment.

Cancellation of Purchase Orders

Cancellation terms are stated on the face of the purchase order, to inform vendors of purchase order cancellation procedures.

In the event it is necessary to cancel a purchase order, the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent notifies the business department so the encumbrance can be liquidated.

13.2.3 Encumbrances

Encumbrances are funds that have been reserved when a purchase requisition is finalized and encumbered. When a requisition is processed, funds are placed aside for that transaction and are no longer available for use in other transactions to prevent the possibility of budget overspending. Encumbrances are used as a general planning tool, to predict cash outflow, and to avoid overspending. The amount of the encumbrance will not be included in the actual funds balances since payment has not been generated. Once payment is made, the encumbrance will be reversed and the funds will appear under the actual funds balance rather than the encumbrance balance.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager utilizes TxEIS to generate obligation, encumbrance, and expenditure information on a monthly basis to monitor and review budget performance.

13.2.4 Invoices

Vendors are required to submit all invoices to the business office. If an invoice is received at the campus or department, the campus principal will bring it to the business office to be attached to the purchase order.

Texas law requires that all invoices be paid to vendors within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the goods/services. If the LEA fails to pay promptly, the vendor can assess penalty interest charges. All invoices must be submitted to the business office within 10 business days of receipt to ensure prompt payment to the vendor. If a school employee neglects to submit an invoice on a timely basis, he/she may be held personally liable for the penalty interest charges.

Invoices for goods must contain a clear description of the merchandise. Invoices for contracted services must include documentation containing dates, hours, students served, if applicable, and services provided, along with the total amount due for services rendered. A statement on the invoice "for services rendered" will not be accepted in lieu of a detailed description of the services performed. Invoices are signed by the appropriate administrator or designee.

13.2.5 Purchasing Deadlines

In an effort to maximize the use of budgeted funds during the current fiscal year and meet the needs of the intended beneficiaries, the purchasing deadline for supplies and equipment shall be August 1 unless the specific State or Federal grant specifies an earlier date.

Summer needs for staff development and summer school should be anticipated and ordered prior to the start of summer school.

Purchasing documents for services and travel should be submitted by 7 days before trip.

At times, the purchasing deadlines for State or Federal grants may be earlier than the deadlines stated above due to grant ending dates.

13.2.6 Required Documentation for Purchases

Third-party documentation is required to support disbursement of funds.

Documentation includes, but is not limited to:

- Purchase Orders;
- Purchase Acquisitions;
- Invoices:
- Original Receipts;
- Packing Slips

The LEA will maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history of procurement with Federal funds.

In addition to the documentation listed above, these records will include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:

- a) Rationale for the method of procurement;
- b) Selection of contract type;
- c) Contractor selection or rejection; and
- d) The basis for the contract price.

13.2.7 Registration Fees

Registration fees are only processed and paid by purchase order and/or check requests.

Registration is paid in advance of the conference, and is sent directly to the conference vendor.

No payments are made to employees for reimbursement of registration fees.

The requisition/purchase order for registration must include the date of the event and the number/names of attendees. A copy of the approved travel must accompany the requisition/purchase order before any payments will be made.

If registration fees are paid with Federal funds, the fee must only be paid during the grant year in which the event occurs.

13.2.8 Sales Tax Exemption Form

The Sales Tax Exemption Form shall be used for school-related purchases only. Misuse of the exemption form for personal purchases constitutes a misdemeanor.

Copies of the exemption form may be obtained from the business office. Taxes, which should have been exempt, will be unauthorized for reimbursement if the exemption form was not presented to the vendor at the time of the purchase.

13.2.9 Subscriptions and Memberships

All costs for membership in business, technical, and professional organizations and subscription costs for business, professional and technical periodicals paid from Federal funds are purchased in the name of the organization, rather than the individual(s).

13.2.10 Vendors

Purchases from vendors that operate on a cash basis (do not accept purchase orders) will be used in extenuating circumstances only. The LEA participates in several cooperative purchasing programs. A list of these programs is available from the business office. Priority should be given to these vendors since the goods and/or services have been subjected to the rigor of a competitive bid process.

13.3 Micro-Purchases (Purchases up to \$3,000) 2 CFR §200.320(a)

Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold. According to 2 CFR §200.67, micro-purchase means a purchase of supplies or services using simplified acquisition procedures, the aggregate amount of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold (currently \$3,000). The micro-purchase threshold is set by the Federal Acquisition Regulation at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1 and is periodically adjusted for inflation. The micro-purchase method is used in order to expedite the completion of its lowest-dollar small purchase transactions and minimize the associated administrative burden and cost.

RLISD follows the most restrictive purchasing requirements, either federal as specified in EDGAR or state, as specified in FASRG. The Business Manager ensures that these requirements are met for RLISD grant-funded purchases.

To the extent practicable, the LEA distributes micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. The superintendent/business manager will determine the distribution of micro purchases

Micro-purchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the LEA considers the price to be reasonable. The LEA maintains evidence of this reasonableness in the records of all micro-purchases. Please see section for written procedures on how to determine whether a price is reasonable.

13.4 Small Purchase Procedures

(Purchases that don't exceed \$150,000*) (*Texas is more restrictive, limiting to \$50,000 for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt TEC 44)

According to 2 CFR §200.320(b), small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently \$150,000*). (Texas is more restrictive, limiting to less than \$50,000 for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt TEC 44.)

According to 2 CFR §200.88, Simplified Acquisition Threshold means the dollar amount below which an LEA may purchase property or services using small purchase methods. LEAs adopt small purchase procedures in order to expedite the purchase of items costing less than the simplified acquisition threshold. The simplified acquisition threshold is set by the Federal Acquisition Regulation at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1 and is periodically adjusted for inflation.

If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations are obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources. An adequate number is "3", if possible.

*Purchases under \$50,000 (State rule: FASRG Purchasing Module, pg 2; for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt TEC 44)

To obtain the most competitive price, a district at its option *may obtain price quotes* for items costing *less than \$50,000*. The district's purchasing procedures should clearly define the lower figure for which quotes are required and *obtain and retain* written verification of the prices quoted. Unlike the mandatory competitive procurement described for purchases over \$50,000, if an item costs less than \$50,000, a district may utilize price quotations to stimulate competition and to attempt to receive the most favorable pricing.

Purchases of goods or services with federal funds between \$3,000 and \$50,000 follow federal Small Purchase Procedures. Three quotes from qualified vendors are required prior to a purchase

requisition being created. The quotes must be attached to the purchase requisition. A single purchase valued at \$50,000 or purchases from the same vendor totaling in the aggregate \$50,000 requires RLISD Board approval.

13.5 Competitive Purchasing Requirements

*Purchases \$50,000 - \$150,000 (for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt TEC 44)

Please see section for purchase methods according to state rules, TEC 44.031.

Purchases of goods or services between \$50,001 and \$150,000 follow state competitive purchasing requirements set forth in the Texas Education Code \$44.031 and detailed in FASRG Purchasing Module, Module 3, Section 3.2.3. Purchases within these thresholds require Board consideration and approval. A Board agenda item is required and must be prepared according to timelines established by the Board's administrative assistant. Purchases within these thresholds must be made through a public solicitation with a formal Request for Proposal (RFP) or a Request for Qualifications (RFQ). Proposals or Qualifications received in response to an RFP or RFQ are to be scored by a committee and a scorecard aligned with the best value criteria established in the Texas Education Code and according to district purchasing procedures.

13.6 Competitive Bidding

Purchases Over \$150,000* (*ISDs and any charter schools that adopt TEC 44, purchases over \$150,000 are subject to the more restrictive federal law that restricts the procurement method to competitive bidding by sealed bids or competitive proposals)

Purchases above \$150,001 require Board consideration and approval. A Board agenda item is required and must be prepared according to timelines established by the Board's administrative assistant. These purchases must be publicly solicited through RFPs or RFQs and adhere to the Texas Education Code \$44.031 and the cost analysis criteria in EDGAR, 2 CFR 200.320 (c). However, while "best value" determinations can be used in applying requirements of the Texas Education Code to purchases between \$50,001 and \$150,000, according to the EDGAR requirements, procurements made above \$150,001 must be awarded to the vendor with the lowest bid or price. Proposals or Qualifications received in response to an RFP or RFQ are to be scored by a committee and a scorecard aligned with EDGAR 2 CFR 200.320 (c) established according to purchasing procedures.

Sealed Bids (Formal Advertising):

Federal Law 2 CFR §200.320(c)

For purchases over \$150,000, bids are publicly solicited and a firm fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material

terms and conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred method for procuring construction, if the following conditions apply:

- A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available;
- Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the business; and
- The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.

If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply:

- Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known suppliers, providing them sufficient response time prior to the date set for opening the bids, for state, local, and tribal governments, the invitation for bids must be publically advertised;
- The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and pertinent attachments, must define the items or services in order for the bidder to properly respond;
- All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids, and for local and tribal governments, the bids must be opened publicly;
- A firm fixed price contract award must be made in writing to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.

Where specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken advantage of. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented reason.

State Law TEC 44.0352 for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt Chapter 44:

- In selecting a vendor through competitive sealed proposals as authorized by Section 44.031(a)(2), a school district shall follow these procedures;
- The district shall prepare a request for competitive sealed proposals that includes information that vendors may require to respond to the request. The district shall state in the request for proposals the selection criteria that will be used in selecting the successful offeror.
- The district shall receive, publicly open, and read aloud the names of the offerors and, if any are required to be stated, all prices stated in each proposal. Not later than the 45th day after the date on which the proposals are opened, the district shall evaluate and rank each proposal submitted in relation to the published selection criteria.
- The district shall select the offeror that offers the best value for the district based on the published selection criteria and on its ranking evaluation. The district shall first attempt to negotiate a contract with the selected offeror. The district may discuss with the selected offeror options for a scope or time modification and any price change associated with the modification. If the district is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the selected

offeror, the district shall, formally and in writing, end negotiations with that offeror and proceed to the next offeror in the order of the selection ranking until a contract is reached or all proposals are rejected.

• In determining the best value for the district, the district is not restricted to considering price alone but may consider any other factors stated in the selection criteria.

Competitive Proposals:

Federal Law 2 CFR §200.320(d)

For purchases over \$150,000, the technique of competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is used, the following requirements apply:

- Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests for proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical;
- Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources; and
- Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors considered.

The LEA may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.

Refer to local board policy.

Technical evaluations of proposals 2 CFR §200.320(d)(3)

The LEA must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of the proposals received under competitive proposals and for selecting recipients.

The superintendent will determine the evaluation process based on the needs of the purchase.

State Law TEC 44.0351 for ISDs and any charter schools that adopt Chapter 44:

• Except to the extent prohibited by other law and to the extent consistent with this subchapter, a school district may use competitive bidding to select a vendor as authorized by Section 44.031(a)(1).

- Except as provided by this subsection, Subchapter B, Chapter 271, Local Government Code, does not apply to a competitive bidding process under this subchapter. Sections 271.026, 271.027(a), and 271.0275, Local Government Code, apply to a competitive bidding process under this subchapter:
 - Sec 271.026 Opening of Bids. Bids may be opened only by the governing body of the governmental body of the governmental entity at a public meeting or by an officer or employee of the governmental entity at or in an office of the governmental entity. A bid that has been opened may not be changed for the purpose of correcting an error in the bid price. This subchapter does not change the common law right of a bidder to withdraw a bid due to a material mistake in the bid.
 - Sec 271.027(a) Award of Contract. The governmental entity is entitled to reject any and all bids.
 - Sec 271.0275 Safety Record of Bidder Considered. In determining who is a responsible bidder, the governmental entity may take into account the safety record of the bidder, of the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by the bidder, or of anyone acting for such a firm, corporation, partnership, or institution if:
 - The governing body of the governmental entity has adopted a written definition and criteria for accurately determining the safety record of a bidder;
 - The governing body has given notice to prospective bidders in the bid specifications that the safety record of a bidder may be considered in determining the responsibility of the bidder; and
 - The determinations are not arbitrary and capricious.
- A school district shall award a competitively bid contract at the bid amount to the bidder offering the best value for the district. In determining the best value for the district, the district is not restricted to considering price alone but may consider any other factors stated in the selection criteria. The selection criteria may include the factors listed in Section 44.031(b).
 - Purchase price;
 - o Reputation of the vendor and of the vendor's goods or services;
 - Quality of the vendor's goods or services;
 - o Extent to which the goods or services meet the district's needs;
 - Vendor's past relationship with the district;
 - Impact on the ability of the district to comply with laws and rules relating to historically underutilized businesses;
 - o Total long-term cost to the district to acquire the vendor's goods or services;

13.7 Noncompetitive Proposals (Sole Sourcing) 2 CFR §200.320(f)

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply:

- The item is available only from a single source;
- The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation;
- The federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the LEA; or
- After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.

The superintendent will provide approval when noncompetitive proposals are involved.

A cost or price analysis will be performed for noncompetitive proposals when the price exceeds \$150,000. Please see section for procedures on cost/price analysis.

The superintendent or business manager will ensure adequate documentation is maintained that shows how the decision to use this method of procurement was reached, including the uniqueness of the services or goods sought, the scarcity of providers, and the specific expertise and experience of the vendor selected.

An online search for providers or a letter from the vendor stating they are the only source available is not sufficient. A claim of sole source may qualify for noncompetitive proposal if the material is copyrighted or an upgrade to an item previously purchased from the provider is being purchased. However, the best practice is to first use the competitive proposal process and only when the results are inadequate to then proceed to noncompetitive proposal.

13.8 Contract Cost/Price Analysis 2 CFR §200.323

The LEA performs a cost or price analysis in connection with every procurement action in excess of \$150,000 (Simplified Acquisition Threshold), including contract modifications. 2 CFR \$200.323(a). A cost analysis generally means evaluating the separate cost elements that make up the total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price, without looking at the individual cost elements.

The method and degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation; however, the superintendent must come to an independent estimate *prior* to receiving bids or proposals. 2 CFR §200.323(a).

When performing a cost analysis, the superintendent negotiates profit as a separate element of the price. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration is given to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, the amount of

subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work. 2 CFR §200.323(b).

13.9 State Purchasing Laws According to Texas Education Code 44.031

(applicable to ISDs and any charter schools that adopt Chapter 44)

The Texas Education Code (TEC) 44.031 addresses the requirement to competitively bid all LEA contracts for the purchase of goods and services valued at \$50,000 or more in the aggregate for each 12-month period, by the method that provides the best value for the LEA, according to the methods outlined in TEC 44.031:

- a) competitive bidding;
- b) competitive sealed proposals;
- c) a request for proposals, for services other than construction services;
- d) an interlocal contract;
- e) a design/build contract;
- f) a contract to construct, rehabilitate, alter, or repair facilities that involves using a construction manager;
- g) a job order contract for the minor construction, repair, rehabilitation, or alteration of a facility;
- h) the reverse auction procedure as defined by Section 2155.062(d), Government Code; or
- i) the formation of a political subdivision corporation under Section 304.011, Local Government Code.

School Buses (TEC 44.031(1):

Each contract proposed to be made by an LEA for the purchase or lease of one or more school buses, including a lease with an option to purchase, must be submitted to competitive bidding when the contract is valued at \$20,000 or more.

Since non-compliance of the requirements of TEC 44.031 may result in criminal penalties, these requirements will be strictly enforced.

Contract with Person Indebted to LEA (TEC 44.044):

The LEA's Board of Trustees by resolution may establish regulations permitting the LEA to refuse to enter into a contract or other transaction with a person indebted to the LEA. If such regulation is adopted, it is not a violation for the LEA to refuse to award a contract or enter into a transaction with an apparent low bidder or successful proposer that is indebted to the LEA. Exceptions to the competitive bid requirement include:

- a) Contracts for the purchase of produce or vehicle fuel (TEC 44.031(a));
- b) Contracts for professional services rendered by a certified public accountant; an architect; a landscape architect; a land surveyor; a physician, including a surgeon; an optometrist; a professional engineer; a state certified or state licensed real estate appraiser; or a registered nurse. Rather than be selected on the basis of competitive bids, the selection and award should be made on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications to perform the service and for a fair and reasonable price. (TEC 44.031(f); Government Code 2254,002(2)(B); 2254.003); c) Emergency replacement or repair of school equipment, school facility, or portion of school facility that has been destroyed, severely damaged or experiences a major unforeseen operational or structural failure, as outlined in TEC 44.031(h) and approved by the Board of Trustees;
- d) Computers and computer-related equipment, including computer software acquired through the Department of Information Resources under contracts entered into in accordance with Government Code 2054 or 2157 (TEC 44.031(i));
- e) Sole Source Goods for items for which competition is precluded because of the existence of a patent, copyright, secret process, or monopoly; a film, manuscript, or book; a utility service, including electricity, gas, or water; and a captive replacement part or component for equipment. (TEC 44.031(j). This Sole Source exception does not apply to mainframe data-processing equipment and peripheral attachments with a single-item price in excess of \$15,000 (TEC 44.031(k)).

Public Notice (TEC 44.031(g):

Notice of the time by when and place where the bids or proposals, or the responses to a request for qualifications, will be received and opened shall be published in the county in which the LEA's central administrative office is located, once a week for at least two weeks before the deadline for receiving bids, proposals, or responses to a request for qualifications. If there is not a newspaper in that county, the advertising shall be published in a newspaper in the county nearest the county seat of the county in which the LEA's central administrative office is located. In a two-step procurement process, the time and place where the second-step bids, proposals, or

responses will be received are not required to be published separately.

Award Determinations (TEC 44.031(b):

The following will be considered when determining to whom to award a contract:

- a) The purchase price;
- b) The reputation of the vendor and of the vendor's goods or services;
- c) The quality of the vendor's goods or services;
- d) The extent to which the goods or services meet the LEA's needs;
- e) The vendor's past relationship with the LEA;
- f) The impact on the ability of the LEA to comply with laws and rules relating to historically underutilized businesses;
- g) The total long-term cost to the LEA to acquire the vendor's goods or services; and
- h) Any other relevant factor specifically listed in the request for bids or proposals.

Electronic Bids or Proposals (TEC 44.0313):

- a) Bids or proposals may be received through electronic transmission if the LEA's Board of Trustees adopts rules to ensure the identification, security, and confidentiality of electronic bids or proposals and to ensure that the electronic bids or proposals remain effectively unopened until the proper time.
- b) An electronic bid or proposal is not required to be sealed.
- c) The Robert Lee ISD's Board of Trustees does allow receipt of electronic bids or proposals.

Contracted Related and Management Fees Under Certain Cooperative Purchasing Contracts (TEC 44.0331):

a) If the LEA enters into a purchasing contract valued at \$25,000 or more under TEC 44.031(a)(5), under Subchapter F, Chapter 271, Local Government Code, or under any other cooperative purchasing program authorized for LEAs by law, will document any contract-related fee, including any management fee, and the purpose of each fee under the contract.

b) The amount, purpose, and disposition of any fee described above will be presented in a written report and submitted annually in an open meeting of the Board of Trustees of the LEA. The written report will appear as an agenda item.

Criminal History of Contractor (TEC 44.034):

The Robert Lee ISD's Board of Trustees may terminate a contract with a person or business entity if the LEA determines that the person or business entity failed to give advance notice to the LEA that the person or an owner or operator of the business entity has been convicted of a felony, according to TEC 44.034(a), or misrepresented the conduct resulting in the conviction. If the LEA terminates the contract for such reason, the LEA will compensate the person or business entity for services performed before the termination of the contract.

Construction Services, Design-Build Contracts for Facilities, Construction Manager-Agent, Construction Manager-At-Risk:

The LEA will comply with the requirements found in TEC 44.035, 44.036, 44.037, 44.038, 44.039, 44.040, and 44.041 for specific information related to construction contracts.

Purchase or Lease of Automated External Defibrillator (TEC 44.047):

If the LEA purchases or leases an automated external defibrillator, as defined by Section 779.001, Health and Safety Code, the LEA will ensure that the automated external defibrillator meets standards established by the Federal Food and Drug Administration. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for ensuring compliance.

13.10 Enforcement of Purchase Procedures According to Texas Education Code 44.032

According to TEC 44.032, an officer, employee, or agent of an LEA commits an offense if the person, with criminal negligence, makes or authorizes separate, sequential, or component purchases to avoid the requirements of TEC 44.031(a) or (b). An offense under TEC 44.032(b) is a Class B misdemeanor and is an offense involving moral turpitude.

An officer, employee, or agent of an LEA commits an offense if the person, with criminal negligence, violates TEC 44.031(a) or (b) other than by conduct described in TEC 44.032(b). An offense under TEC 44.032(c) is a Class B misdemeanor and is an offense involving moral turpitude.

An officer or employee of an LEA commits an offense if the officer or employee knowingly violates TEC 44.031, other than by conduct described in TEC 44.032(b) and (c). An offense under TEC 44.032(d) is a Class C misdemeanor.

The final conviction of a person other than a trustee of an LEA for an offense under TEC 44.032(b) or (c) results in the immediate removal from office or employment of that person. Additional information concerning a trustee who is convicted of an offense under TEC 44.032(b) or (c) may be found at TEC 44.032(e).

13.11 Full and Open Competition

All procurement transactions must be conducted in a manner providing full and open competition consistent with 2 C.F.R §200.319. In order to ensure objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include but are not limited to:

- Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do business;
- Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding;
- Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated companies;
- Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts;
- Organizational conflicts of interest;
- Specifying only a "brand name" product instead of allowing "an equal" product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant requirements of the procurement;
 and
- Any arbitrary action in the procurement process.

EDGAR further requires the following to ensure adequate competition.

13.12 Geographical Preferences Prohibited

The LEA must conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where applicable federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic preference. When contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract.

Texas Education Code (TEC) 44.042 requires the following geographical preferences:

- LEAs that purchase agricultural products shall give preference to those produced, processed, or grown in Texas if the cost to the LEA is equal and the quality is equal. TEC 44.042(a).
- If agricultural products produced, processed, or grown in Texas are not equal in cost and quality to other products, the LEA shall give preference to agricultural products produced, processed, or grown in other states of the United States over foreign products if the cost to the LEA is equal and the quality is equal. TEC 44.042(b).
- An LEA that purchases vegetation for landscaping purposes, including plants, shall give preference to Texas vegetation if the cost to the LEA is equal and the quality is not inferior. TEC 44.042(c)
- An LEA may not adopt product purchasing specifications that unnecessarily exclude agricultural products produced, processed, or grown in Texas. TEC 44.042(f)
- For the purposes of TEC 44.042:
 - o "Agricultural products" includes textiles and other similar products.
 - o "Processed" means canning, freezing, drying, juicing, preserving, or any other act that changes the form of a good from its natural state to another form. TEC 44.042(g)

TEC 44 is applicable to ISDs and any charter schools that adopt Chapter 44.

13.13 Prequalified Lists

The LEA must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. Also, the LEA must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

The superintendent or business manager is responsible for ensuring the standards and elements described above are met.

13.14 Solicitation Language

The LEA must ensure that all solicitations incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must not, in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when necessary, must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible.

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a "brand name or equivalent" description may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named

brand which must be met by offers must be clearly stated; and identify all requirements which the offer must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. 2 C.F.R §200.319(c).

The superintendent or business manager is responsible for ensuring the standards and elements described above are met.

14.0 Federal Procurement System Standards

14.1 Avoiding Acquisition of Unnecessary or Duplicative Items 2 CFR §200.318(d)

The LEA must avoid the acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an analysis must be made of leases versus purchase alternatives, and other appropriate analyses to determine the most economical approach. Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluation bids or proposals. Procurement by micropurchases. Procurement by micropurchase is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold (§200.67 Micropurchase). To the extent practicable the no Federal entity must distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micropurchases may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations if the non-Federal entity considers the price to be reasonable.

(b) Procurement by small purchase procedures. Small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal procurement methods of securing services, supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold. If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an adequate number os qualified sources.

These considerations are given as part of the process to determine the allowability of each purchase made with federal funds.

The district has adopted the EDGAR definition (2 CFR 200.2) of Acquisition costs.

Please see section for procedures on determining allowability.

14.2 Use of Intergovernmental Agreements 2 CFR §200.318(e)

To foster greater economy and efficiency, and in accordance with efforts to promote cost-effective use of shared services across the Federal Government, the LEA is encouraged to enter into state and local intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.

14.2 Purchasing Cooperatives 2 CFR §200.318(e)

To foster greater economy and efficiency, and in accordance with efforts to promote cost-effective use of shared services across the Federal Government, the LEA is encouraged to enter into state and local intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.

14.3 Use of Federal Excess and Surplus Property 2 CFR §200.318(f)

The LEA considers the use of federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and reduces project costs.

14.4 Debarment and Suspension 2 CFR §200.212

The LEA awards contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and technical resources.

The LEA may not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or company who is debarred or suspended. The business office is required to check for excluded parties at the System for Award Management website before any procurement transaction. This list is located at: http://www.sam.gov/.

Suspension and Debarment 2 CFR 200 Appendix II, Section H

(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusion in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp, p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

14.5 Maintenance of Procurement Records 2 CFR §200.318(h)(i)

The LEA must maintain records sufficient to detail the history of all procurements. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, the basis for the contract price.

Please see section for more information on the LEA's record policies.

14.6 Time and Materials Contracts 2 CFR §200.318(h)(i)(1-2)

The LEA may use a time and materials type contract only (1) after a determination that no other contract is suitable; and (2) if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its

own risk. Time and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to the LEA is the sum of: the actual costs of materials, and direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses, and profit.

Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, each contract must set a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the LEA must assert a high degree of oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls.

14.7 Settlements of Issues Arising Out of Procurements 2 CFR §200.318(k)

The LEA alone is responsible, in accordance with good administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These standards do not relieve the LEA of any contractual responsibilities under its contracts. Violations of law will be referred to the local, state, or federal authority having proper jurisdiction.

14.8 Protest Procedures to Resolve Dispute

The LEA maintains protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to procurements and, in all instances, discloses information regarding the protest to the awarding agency.

Protest procedures can be found in local board policy.

14.9 Purchase Cards

Robert Lee ISD does not use purchase cards for federal purchases.

14.10 Gift Cards and Debit Cards

The LEA does authorize the use of gift cards or debit cards for purchases with State or local funds. Gift cards or debit cards are not authorized for purchases with Federal grant funds because they do not provide adequate accountability for ensuring allowable use of funds.

Gift cards and debit cards can be used for reward programs. Documentation is kept for who receives rewards.

14.11 Conflict of Interest Requirements

Robert Lee ISD ensures that its employees or agents adhere to standards of conduct that comply with state law and federal regulations. RLISD uses a Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest form that complies with 2 CFR 200.318(c) and for ensuring that each employee, officer or agent signs the form. The signed forms are maintained in the personnel files in the Human Resources Department.

The procedures developed include standards to ensure that RLISD employees will not participate in the selection, award, or administration of contracts in which they have a conflict interest in the outcome of the selection, award or administration of the contract. A conflict of interest arises when the employee, officer, or agent, an immediate family member or partner of the employee, officer, or agent, or an organization that employs a person in one of these identified roles has an interest in, or will benefit from, the award of that contract.

Employees should not use their position with the LEA to attempt to sell products or services.

Employees shall not recommend, endorse, or require students to purchase any product, material or service in which the employee has a financial interest or that is sold by a company that employs or retains the LEA employee during non-school hours.

14.12 Standards of Conduct (Conflicts of Interest) 2 CFR §200.318(c)(1)

In accordance with 2 CFR §200.318(c)(1), the LEA maintains the following standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts.

No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a federal award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The LEA defines "immediate family" in board policy. The LEA defines "partner" as any entity that has a financial interest in any contract. The LEA defines "financial or other interest" as tangible benefit to partner or immediate family.

The officers, employees, and agents of the LEA may neither solicit nor accept gifts, gratuities, favors, services, benefits, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts that could reasonably be construed to influence the person's discharge of assigned duties and responsibilities, unless the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. Officers, employees, and agents of the LEA may accept gifts that are of nominal value given for the purpose of advertising, ceremonial occasions or official events. As used in this policy, nominal value is defined as \$50 or less ensure that this is compliant with state and local rules.

All complaints regarding conflict of interest should be reported to the superintendent. If the superintendent it involved in the complaint, complaint should be made the board president of the local Board of Trustees.

Mandatory Disclosure to the LEA

The employee shall disclose in writing to his or her immediate supervisor a personal financial interest, a business interest, or any other obligation or relationship that in any way creates a real or potential conflict of interest with the proper discharge of assigned duties and responsibilities or that creates a potential conflict of interest with the best interest of the LEA. In the case that the individual receiving the report is also involved in the potential conflict, the disclosure should be submitted to superintendent or business manager.

The officer or agent of the LEA shall disclose in writing to superintendent a personal financial interest, a business interest, or any other obligation or relationship that in any way creates a real or potential conflict of interest with the proper discharge of assigned duties and responsibilities or that creates a potential conflict of interest with the best interest of the LEA. In the case that the individual receiving the report is also involved in the potential conflict, the disclosure should be submitted to superintendent or business manager.

The LEA must disclose in writing any potential conflict of interest to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity (TEA) in accordance with applicable federal awarding agency policy. The LEA's Conflict of Interest policy will align with the USDE's conflict of interest policy once it has been released, 2 CFR §200.112

14.13 Organizational Conflicts 2 CFR §200.318(c)(2)

If the LEA has a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a state, local government, or Indian tribe, the LEA must include written standards of conduct covering organizational conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest means that because of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, the non-Federal entity is unable or appears to be unable to be impartial in conducting a procurement action involving a related organization. 2 C.F.R §200.318(c)(2).

This is not applicable to the LEA.

14.14 Disciplinary Actions

Penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations of standards of conduct will be in accordance and to the extent permitted under state and local law.

14.15 Mandatory Disclosure 2 CFR §200.113

The LEA must, in a timely manner, in writing to the federal awarding agency or pass-through entity (TEA), all violations of federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the federal award.

Upon discovery of any potential conflict of interest and all violations of federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations, the LEA will disclose in writing the potential conflict or violation of federal criminal law to the federal awarding agency in accordance with applicable federal awarding agency policy. The LEA will follow the USDE's policy once it has been released.

15.0 Contract Administration

The district will perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every contract greater than \$150,000 and will negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each contract above this threshold (2 CFR 200.323).

The district will take all affirmative steps necessary to ensure that minority-owned businesses, women-owned businesses, and labor surplus firms are used as contractors when possible (2 CFR 200.321).

In general, Robert Lee ISD will use its contracts when engaging vendors for the delivery of goods or services.

The Business Manager is responsible for ensuring that the provisions and conditions of the contracts created by RLISD are aligned with the EDGAR regulations in 2 CFR 200 Appendix II and other provisions required by the agency funding the grant from which the contract is issued.

Requirements specified in provisions of 2 CFR 200 Appendix II include:

- A. Contracts for more than \$150,000 must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies where contractors violate or breach contract terms and provide for sanctions and penalties as appropriate;
- B. Contract for more than \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience, including the manner by which this provision is effected and the basis for settlement;
- C. Equal employment opportunity;
- D. The Davis-Bacon Act;
- E. Work Hours and Safety Standards;
- F. Rights to Inventions;
- G. The Clean Air Act;
- H. Debarment and Suspension;

I. The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment.

RLISD will avoid unnecessary or duplicative items through its purchasing process and will also consider how contracts can best be structured to obtain the most economical price for the district. The Business Manager, through the analysis or bid, quote, or proposal scoring process will take into consideration the potential awarding of contracts to responsible contractors with the ability to perform successfully the scope of work specified in the contract.

RLISD will maintain records or contracts awarded by the district (2 CFR 200.318). The records may be in paper or in the electronic format compatible with the district's financial system and will include, at minimum:

- 1. Rationale for the method of procurement used in to develop the contract;
- 2. The type of contract used and the solicitation used to acquire the contracted goods or services;
- 3. Scoring of the proposals, including the names of the members of the scoring committee and the scores given to each proposal;
- 4. The signed contract, with changes agreed to by the district and vendor;
- 5. The contract price and budget;
- 6. The purchase order for the contract;
- 7. Payments made to the contractor;
- 8. Documentation of contract amendments;
- 9. Documentation of vendor any disciplinary actions or sanctions;
- 10. Documentation of remedies associated with those actions or sanctions.

The LEA maintains the following oversights to ensure that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

The superintendent receives the property and the superintendent's administrative assistant ensures that all goods are received.

All contracts and service agreements, etc. must be signed by the Superintendent or designee. Only the Superintendent or designee is authorized to sign a contract or agreement on behalf of the LEA. Contracts that exceed \$25,000 shall be approved by the Superintendent and the School Board.

The Superintendent has signature authority for the LEA. An employee who signs a contract or agreement without proper authorization will be personally liable for the terms of the contract or agreement and the act may be grounds for termination of employment.

The business office maintains a copy of the signed contract, agreement, or purchase order for services performed and the rationale or procedure for selecting a particular vendor.

Contracts or agreements in excess of \$10,000 describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for cause or for convenience by the LEA, including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200.

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200.

If the contract is to develop materials, concepts, or products, the agreement or contract contains provisions that protect and retain ownership of such materials, concepts, or products by TEA, the State of Texas, and the federal government, as applicable (including copyright, patent, trademark).

The Superintendent's office maintains evidence that awards were made only to contractors or consultants possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed contract or procurement.

The Superintendent's office maintains evidence that consultants were selected based on demonstrated competence, qualifications, experience, and reasonableness of costs and that consideration was given to contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, past performance, and financial and technical resources.

No contracts are entered into with employees of the LEA.

The Superintendent's office maintains evidence that an employee did not participate in selection or award of a contract if a conflict of interest was involved.

Rental of Facilities: The superintendent will coordinate the rental of LEA facilities. A Rental Agreement is required for all rentals of facilities by outside organizations. All contracts will include security deposits (unless waived), charges for facility usage, custodial services, and other related charges, if applicable. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent and Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is authorized to waive security deposits.

A. Procedures for submitting a Consultant Service Contract:

- A. Submit the Consultant Service Contract to the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent for review.
- B. Obtain the following documents from the consultant and submit with the purchase order to the business office: A completed W-9 Form; A Felony Conviction Form; A Criminal Check Authorization and Fingerprinting Form, if the consultant will work directly with students; A Conflict of Interest Questionnaire; Documentation of insurance, such as general liability, workers compensation, and auto liability, if applicable.
- C. Follow the procedures for Suspension and Debarment Verification for transactions supported with Federal funds outlined in this manual, as applicable.

15.1 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion

RLISD does not award a contract to a vendor which is debarred or suspended or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal grant award programs.

The Business Manager oversees the verification of the eligibility of each vendor with this certification requirement by requesting that the vendor execute a Certification Form before awarding a contract and/or issuing a purchase order. A copy of the Certification Form is maintained with the contract and/or purchase order for audit purposes.

The Business Manager is responsible for monitoring ongoing contracts to verify the contractor's compliance with the debarment, suspension, ineligibility and voluntary exclusion provisions. In the event that a vendor is suspended or debarred during a contract, the district shall continue the contract in force until the contract lapses. The contract term shall not include any extensions to the original term of the contract.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent will ensure that contractors, consultants, service providers, and vendors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

Prior to disbursement of funds to a contractor, consultant, service provider, or vendor, documentation must be provided to the LEA to support the goods or services rendered.

Documentation includes, but is not limited to: Description of the goods or services rendered; Dates; Rate; Total Hours, if applicable; Number of students served or names of students served, if applicable.

When procuring contracted services with Federal funds, the LEA will ensure that every purchase order or contract includes language to ensure services align with allowable use of grant funds, if applicable.

15.2 Lobbying Certification

For all federal grants in excess of \$100,000, RLISD certifies on the grant application that no federal grant funds are expended for the purpose of lobbying. The Business Manager shall execute a Lobbying Certification Form, as applicable, if the district used funds other than federal grant funds for lobbying activities.

RLISD ensures that all contract award documents with federal grant funds contain the appropriate lobbying certification language.

15.3 Accountability

The LEA ensures that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders.

- a) The LEA obtains written contracts or purchase orders.
- b) Contracts for services include a description of the services to be performed, the date(s) the services will be performed, the location(s) of where the services will be performed, the number or type of beneficiaries to be served, if applicable, and when payment(s) will be made, specifying verification before payment. The terms of the contract will include language that assures the activities performed by the contractor are allowable activities according to the Federal program, if applicable.
- c) Purchase orders for goods include a description of the goods to be delivered, the date(s) the goods will be delivered, the location(s) of where the goods will be delivered, and when payment(s) will be made, specifying verification before payment.
- d) Invoices match the contracts or purchase orders, including a description of services performed by the contractor or goods delivered by the vendor, the date(s) services were performed or goods delivered, the location(s) where the services were performed or goods were delivered, and if applicable, the number of beneficiaries served and identifying information of the beneficiaries who were served.
- e) The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent verifies that the services were performed or the goods were received before issuing payment. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent verifies that the contractor or vendor met all of its responsibilities under the contract or purchase order before approving payment. Invoices that merely state "for services rendered" will not be approved for payment. Invoices for services provided to students must indicate which student(s) was served and under which program.

The business office maintains records on services performed – date of service, purpose of service – ensuring that services were consistent and satisfactory as described in the signed contract or purchase order.

The business office maintains evidence that payment was made only after the service was performed or goods received, and not before. Advance payment to contractors is prohibited.

Recommended language for contracts with federal funds:

The Texas Education Agency (TEA) requires all professional services contracts be effective only during the period of availability of funds identified in the Notice of Grant Award (NOGA).

A letter of intent to contract with a third party may be signed prior to the issuance of a NOGA. (a) The letter of intent should contain a provision that the future contract is contingent upon receipt of the specific NOGA. (b) Execute the contract *after* the NOGA is issued.

16.0 Property Management Systems

16.1 Property Classifications

<u>Equipment</u> means tangible personal property (including information technology systems) having a useful life of more than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level established by the LEA for financial statement purposes, or \$5,000. 2 CFR §200.33.

The LEA's established capitalization threshold is \$5,000. Capitalization Policy The district uses the same capitalization policy for non-grant and grant-funded asset purchases. The district's capitalization threshold for assets is \$5000.00 per unit cost. The district has adopted the EDGAR (2 CFR 200.12) definitions of property.

<u>Supplies</u> means all tangible personal property other than those described in §200.33 Equipment. A computing device is a supply if the acquisition cost is less than the lesser of the capitalization level established by the LEA for financial statement purposes or \$5,000, regardless of the length of its useful life. 2 CFR §200.94. The LEA's established capitalization threshold is notated above in the Equipment definition.

<u>Computing devices</u> means machines used to acquire, store, analyze, process, and publish data and other information electronically, including accessories (or "peripherals") for printing, transmitting and receiving, or storing electronic information. 2 CFR §200.20.

<u>Capital assets</u> means tangible or intangible assets used in operations having a useful life of more than one year which are capitalized in accordance with GAAP. Capital assets include:

- Land, buildings (facilities), equipment, and intellectual property (including software) whether acquired by purchase, construction, manufacture, lease-purchase, exchange, or through capital leases; and
- Additions, improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations or alterations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life (not ordinary repairs and maintenance). 2 CFR §200.12.

<u>Acquisition Cost</u> The district has adopted the EDGAR definition (2 CFR 200.2) of Acquisition costs.

Maintenance is responsible for ensuring that RLISD safeguards all property (assets and inventory) purchased with federal grant funds under the same guidelines as property purchased with local funds. The district will purchase additional insurance for property purchased with federal grant funds if specifically required by a federal grant award. The Business Manager oversees the acquisition of insurance for all federally funded property.

RLISD has developed procedures that ensure RLISD does not use federal grant funds to purchase real property.

RLISD may use federal grant funds to purchase equipment and supplies. However, the district does not use federal grant funds to purchase intangible property. The federally-funded equipment is to be used only for the authorized purposes and is to be disposed of at the end of the useful life or end of the grant period, in accordance with the grant award guidelines.

RLISD does not use federally-funded equipment to generate program income. The federally-funded supplies are to be used only for the authorized purposes. Any residual (unused) supplies, in excess of \$5,000 in total aggregate value, at the end of the grant program or project may be used for any other federal grant program. Otherwise, the supplies shall be retained by the district or sold, but must reimburse the granting agency for the district use or sell of the supplies. The district shall implement purchasing deadlines for the purchase of federally-funded supplies to ensure that residual supplies are not available at the end of the grant period or project. The purchasing deadlines are available in the Business Office.

17.0 Inventory Procedure

Administrative assistants receive and document all appropriate inventories as it is received. Documentation will include original cost, location of item, and funding source used to purchase item(s). The administrative assistant will ensure all property is tagged or marked according to all capital requirements.

17.1 Inventory Records 2 CFR 200.33 (d)(1)

(d) Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including eplacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part under a Federal award, until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following requirements:

For each equipment and computing device purchased with federal funds, the following information is maintained in the administrative assistant's office:

Description of the property;

- Serial number or other identification number;
- Source of funding for the property (including the FAIN);
- Who holds title;
- Acquisition date and cost of the property;
- Percentage of federal participation in the project costs for the federal award under which the property was acquired;
- Location, use and condition of the property; and
- Any ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property.

17.2 Physical Inventory

A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the property records at least once every two years.

The administrative assistant will initiate and coordinate the inventory. Any discrepancies found during the inventory will and the inventory record will be reported to the superintendent.

Fixed (capital) Assets

Fixed (capital) assets are tracked and recorded on the LEA's inventory system by the administrative assistant or designee and the financial general ledger by the business manager. A physical inventory is performed annually by the administrative assistant with the option to designate staff for assistance. and the results are reconciled with inventory records. All missing items are investigated by the administrative assistant or designee. Fixed (capital) assets that are stolen, obsolete, damaged beyond repair, etc. are reported to the administrative assistant or designee removal from the LEA's financial records.

Please see procedures for lost or stolen items.

Supplies and Computing Devices

Each campus administrator in collaboration with the Technology Director, will inventory and track all technology equipment.

Inventory Frequency 2 CFR 200.313(d)(2)

- (d) Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including replacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part under a Federal award, until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following requirements:
- (2) A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the property records at least once every two year.

17.3 Maintenance

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.313(d)(4), the LEA maintains adequate maintenance procedures to ensure that property is kept in good condition.

Maintaining Asset Inventory & Records

All federally-funded assets are to be maintained in an operable state. If repairs are necessary, the district may pay for the repairs of the federally-funded assets with federal grant funds, unless expressly restricted by the granting agency.

Federal requirements 2 CFR 200.313 requires an inventory of equipment at least once every 2 years. The district fixed asset procedures is an annual inventory process (or more frequently if required by a granting agency) of all assets and reconciliation of the inventory reports. The district's annual inventory of assets is overseen by the Business Manager.

In addition, the district tracks all grant-funded asset purchases by grant, or fund code, as appropriate. The disposal of grant-funded assets shall be in accordance with federal guidelines and grant-specific guidelines, if any. At a minimum, the disposition date, reason and sale price of all federally-funded assets shall be recorded in the fixed assets database.

Maintenance oversees the maintenance of the fixed asset database of all district assets, including all federally-funded assets.

17.4 Lost or Stolen Items

The LEA maintains a control system that ensures adequate safeguards are in place to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Lost, damaged, or stolen assets shall be recorded on the fixed assets database with the date of the loss. The disposition records such as the loss report (police report for thefts) shall be maintained with the asset records.

During the life of the asset, the district ensures that all assets purchased with federal grant funds are insured against loss. The costs to insure and maintain (repair) assets purchased with federal grant funds are generally allowable costs, unless specifically prohibited by a granting agency.

17.5 Use of Equipment 2 CFR §200.313

Equipment must be used in the program or project for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by the federal award, and the LEA will not encumber the property without prior approval of the federal awarding agency and the pass-through entity. When no longer needed for the original program or project, the equipment may be used in other activities supported by the federal awarding agency, in the following order of priority:

(1) activities under a federal award from the federal awarding agency which funded the original program or project; then (2) activities under federal awards from other federal awarding agencies. 2 CFR §200.313(c)(1)

17.6 Transfer of Equipment

All disposition of equipment and surplus supplies, including transfer of equipment, require approval by TEA, regardless of the dollar amount of the current fair market value. The LEA will use the required TEA disposition form, available on the TEA website, to seek disposition approval prior to the actual transfer of the equipment.

Current Use of Equipment Shared with other Projects or Programs 2 CFR §200.313(c)(2-3)

During the time equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired, the equipment will also be made available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously supported by the federal government, provided that such use will not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it was originally acquired. First preference for other use must be given to other programs or projects supported by the federal awarding agency that financed the equipment. Second preference is given to programs or projects under federal awards from other federal awarding agencies. Use for non-federally funded programs or projects is also permissible.

User fees should be considered if appropriate. However, the LEA must not use equipment acquired with the federal award to provide services for a fee that is less than private companies charge for equivalent services unless specifically authorized by federal statute for as long as the federal government retains an interest in the equipment.

17.7 Disposal of Equipment 2 CFR §200.313(e)

When it is determined that original or replacement equipment acquired under a federal award is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by a federal awarding agency, the business office will contact the awarding agency (or pass-through for a state-administered grant) for disposition instructions.

All disposition of equipment and surplus supplies require approval by TEA, regardless of the dollar amount of the current fair market value. The LEA will use the required TEA disposition form, available on the TEA website, to seek disposition approval prior to the actual disposition of the equipment/supplies. Reasons for removal may include that the equipment is no longer operable, was destroyed, was stolen, or is no longer needed.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent is responsible for requesting and submitting the disposition request form to TEA.

Generally, disposition of equipment is dependent on its fair market value (FMV) at the time of disposition. If the item has a current FMV of \$5,000 or less, it may be retained, sold, or otherwise

disposed of with no further obligation to the federal awarding agency, after receiving approval by TEA. If the item has a current FMV of more than \$5,000, the federal awarding agency is entitled to the federal share of the current market value or sales proceeds.

If acquiring replacement equipment, the LEA may use the equipment to be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property and use the proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement property.

If the LEA chooses to sell the equipment, the superintendent or business manager is responsible for the process.

Approved equipment may be sold or traded under one of the following conditions:

- By competitive bidding through the Superintendent's office.
- By negotiated bid for items valued under \$500 as approved by the Superintendent's office.
- By a public auction or a predetermined price set by the superintendent and administrative assistant.

If the federal awarding agency is entitled to the federal share of the current market value or sales proceeds, the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent is responsible for the accounting and submittal of the funds.

Every effort should be made to determine if a need for the equipment exists anywhere in the LEA before a sale or trade is allowed. The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent is responsible for determining the appropriate method of disposition.

Equipment considered as surplus and/or unfit for further economical usage (including scrap material) may be transferred to maintenance storage for temporary storage or for ultimate disposition.

17.8 Sale of Surplus Property

Surplus Sales may be advertised in the local newspaper. Sealed bids will be solicited and the items sold to the highest bidder per item. The LEA may also use an online auction service for surplus property sales.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendents responsible for the administration of surplus sales.

17.9 Control of Property, Equipment, Supplies Placed in a Private School for Equitable Services

Property, equipment and supplies placed at a private school to fulfill the ESEA and IDEA-B requirements to provide equitable services to parentally-placed private school children remain

the property of the LEA. The district will control and administer the funds used to provide equitable services and will hold title to and administer materials, equipment, and property purchased from Federal funds for the provision of equitable services.

The district will ensure the property, equipment and supplies placed in the private school:

- a) Are used only for the purposes of the provision of equitable services,
- b) Are placed in the private school only for the period of time needed to provide equitable services.
- c) Are removed when no longer needed for the provision of equitable services,
- d) Are removed when needed to avoid unauthorized used,
- e) Are removable without remodeling the facility.

Inventory tags with the name of the school district are utilized are utilized to ensure proper identification of the district's property being placed temporarily in the private school.

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent is responsible for ensuring the proper administration of property, equipment, and supplies placed in a private school for the provision of equitable services.

18.0 Written Compensation Policies

18.1 Federally-Funded Positions

RLISD establishes roles, functions, and review pay scales for approved positions funded with federal grant funds. The Business Manager will approve the allowability, reasonableness and allocability of these positions prior to their posting or, for open postings, the scheduling of interviews.

Once the allowability, reasonableness, and allocability of the position has been approved by the Business Manager, the RLISD establishes the salary and fringe benefits according to local policy. These costs for the position, according to the application(s) funding the position, may be paid from a single grant, multiple grants, or a combination of grant and state and local funds.

The allowability of a federally-funded position is determined by:

1. Its inclusion in the grant application;

- 2. Whether the creation, approval, and appointment of staff to the position follows written RLISD Human Resources policies and procedures;
- 3. Whether the scope and salary is comparable to those of similar positions, as stated in district Human Resources policies and positions.

Reasonableness of compensation for a federally-funded position is determined by comparing the salary and benefits of the position to other, non-federally funded positions in the district, or, if the position is new to the district, a comparison of the proposed salary and benefits to similar positions in the labor force. For assistance in determining reasonableness of compensation the Texas Association of School Boards periodically makes available salary studies to its member districts.

The allocability of a federally-funded position to a grant is determined by its inclusion in the approved grant application that funds the position. The amount or percent of a position's salary and benefits are allocable to a federal grant to the same extent that the portion or the total hours of that position are included in the grant application. The percentage of salary of a position paid with grant funds may not exceed the percentage of time that the position is funded with that grant.

18.2 Time and Effort 2 CFR §200.430(i)

Time and Effort Standards

General. Compensation for personal services includes all remuneration, paid currently or accured, for services of employees rendered during the period of performance under the Federal award, including but not necessarily limited to wages and salaries. Compensation for personal services may also include fringe benefits which are addressed in §200.431 Compensation-fringe benefits. Costs of compensation are allowable to the extent that they satisfy the specific requirements of this part, and that the total compensation for individual employees:

- (1) Is reasonable for the services rendered and conforms to the established written policy of the non-Federal entity consistently applied to both Federal and non-Federal activities;
- (2) Follows an appointment made in accordance with a non-Federal entity's laws and/or rules or written policies and meets the requirements of Federal statute, where applicable; and
- (3) Is determined and supported as provided in paragraph (i) of this section, Standards for Documentation of Personnel Expenses, when applicable.

All employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds must keep specific documents to demonstrate the amount of time they spent on grant activities. This includes an employee whose salary is paid with state or local funds but is used to meet a required "match" in a federal program. These documents, known as time and effort records, are maintained in order to charge the costs of personnel compensation to federal grants.

Charges to federal awards for salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed. RLISD's time and effort system conforms to the specifications of EDGAR and must:

- Be supported by a system of internal controls which provides reasonable assurance that the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated;
- Be incorporated into official records;
- Reasonably reflect total activity for which the employee is compensated, not exceeding 100% of compensated activities;
- Encompass both federally assisted and all other activities compensated by the LEA on an integrated basis;
- Comply with the established accounting policies and practices of the LEA and
- Support the distribution of the employee's salary or wages among specific activities or costs objectives.

Time and Effort Procedures

Robert Lee ISD employees that are funded in whole or in part by at least one federal grant fund must report time and effort, or the time that they spend performing their various job functions, according to the EDGAR requirements detailed in 2 CFR 200.430(i) and to the requirements of the Texas Education Agency's Substitute Time and Effort Reporting System.

Federal funding of district positions is specified in the district's formula and discretionary federal grant applications. The Business Manager approves the funding for those positions and files the time and effort management certification form with the Texas Education Agency September 15 each year. The Business Manager maintains the district's time and effort system, including job descriptions, whether a position fulfills one or more than one cost objective, and the monthly or semi-annual reports filed by employees in federally-funded positions.

Federally-funded wage and salary budgets are not sufficient records for time and effort reporting. Employees whose positions are funded with federal funds report time and effort based on time worked through the ED-Flex waiver system, the substitute system, or personnel activity reports, as specified by Texas Education Agency rules.

Business Manager will be responsible for documenting campus Time and Effort requirements.

Robert Lee ISD uses time sheets and class schedules.

All personnel paid with Federal funds are subject to Time Distribution Reporting to ensure that Federal program funds are used to pay only their proportionate share of personnel costs. The reporting must demonstrate that an employee paid with Federal funds actually worked on that specific Federal program or cost objective.

The type of time distribution report required is dependent on whether the employee works on a

single cost objective or multiple cost objectives and whether the LEA elects to use the Substitute System of Time and Effort Reporting authorized by TEA.

A cost objective is a function, organizational subdivision, contract, grant, or other activity for which cost data are needed and for which costs are incurred. For example, a single cost objective can be a single function or a single grant or a single activity.

Salaries and wages of employees used in meeting cost sharing or matching requirements of Federal awards are also subject to the Time Distribution Reporting requirement.

Contractors are not subject to the Time Distribution Reporting requirement.

Single Cost Objective (Periodic/Semi-Annual Certification)

Applies to employees who work solely (100% of their time) on a single Federal award/grant program or cost objective.

Charges for their salaries and wages must be supported by Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certifications that certify the employee worked solely on that program/single cost objective for the period covered by the certification.

The Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certification must be prepared at least semi-annually and signed after-the-fact.

The Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certification must be signed by the employee or by the supervisor having first-hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee.

The Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certifications are submitted for the time periods of January through June and July through December.

The Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certifications are submitted to the personnel office.

The Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certifications are reviewed semi-annually by the Robert Lee ISD principals for accuracy and compliance with Federal requirements.

Appendix [D] of this manual provides a sample of the Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certification form.

Multiple Cost Objectives (Time and Effort Personnel Activity Reports – PARs)

Applies to employees who do not work 100% of their time on a single Federal award/grant program or single cost objective but instead work under multiple grant programs or multiple cost

objectives.

A distribution of their salaries or wages must be supported by Personnel Activity Reports (PARs).

The PARs must reflect an after-the-fact distribution of the actual activity of the employee and must account for the total activity for which the employee is compensated.

The PARs must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with one or more pay periods.

The PARs must be completed and signed after-the-fact.

The PARs must be signed by the employee. The supervisor may sign in addition to the employee, but the signature of the supervisor alone is not sufficient for documentation.

The PARs are submitted monthly to the campus principal for review of accuracy and compliance with Federal requirements, who then forwards to the personnel department for final approval and cost reconciliation.

Appendix [E] of this manual provides a sample of the PAR.

Substitute System for Time and Effort Reporting for Employees Supported by Multiple Cost Objectives

The LEA does elect to use the Substitute System for Time and Effort Reporting in lieu of the Personnel Activity Report (PAR) for employees supported by multiple cost objectives.

The Substitute System of Time and Effort Reporting is used in lieu of the Personnel Activity Report (PAR) for eligible employees who are supported by multiple cost objectives, have a predetermined schedule, and do not work on multiple activities or cost objectives at the exact same time on his or her schedule.

If the employee's schedule is not consistent from week to week, but changes regularly, that particular employee is not eligible to use the Substitute System but must submit monthly PARs instead.

If the employee is eligible to use the Substitute System, the employee must complete the TEA-approved Employee Schedule and Certification form on a semi-annual basis, at a minimum.

If the employee's predetermined schedule changes substantively (by more than 10%) during the year, the employee must complete and submit an updated Employee Schedule and Certification

form.

The Employee Schedule and Certification form must be completed and signed after-the-fact.

The Employee Certification form must be signed by both the employee and the supervisor having first-hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee.

The Employee Schedule and Certification is submitted for the time periods of January through June and July through December.

The Employee Schedule and Certification form is submitted semi-annually to the Robert Lee ISD business office for review of accuracy and compliance with Federal requirements. Charges to the grants must be supported by the Employee Schedule and Certification forms.

The Robert Lee ISD personnel director will submit the required LEA Management Certification form to TEA (that notifies TEA of the LEA's election to use the Substitute System) on an annual basis by the deadline established by TEA for each school year in which the Substitute System is implemented.

Appendix [D] of this manual provides a sample of the Employee Schedule and Certification form.

Appendix [E] of this manual provides a sample of the LEA Management Certification form.

18.3 Reconciliation and Closeout Procedures

It is critical for payroll charges to match the actual distribution of time recorded on the monthly certification documents. Budget estimates or other distribution percentages determined before the services are performed do not qualify as support for charges to federal awards, but may be used for interim accounting purposes provided that the system for establishing the estimates produces reasonable approximations of the activity actually performed.

The business office handles the process to reconcile actual costs to budgeted distributions. This reconciliation takes place at least quarterly throughout the year.

For employees working under multiple cost objectives, budget estimates or other distribution percentages determined before the services are actually performed do not qualify as support for charges to Federal grant awards. However, the budget estimates or distribution percentages may be used for interim accounting purposes, provided that:

1) The LEA's system for establishing the estimates produces reasonable approximations of the activity actually performed;

- 2) At least quarterly, comparisons of actual costs to budgeted distributions based on the monthly Time and Effort PARs are made;
- 3) At least semi-annually, comparisons of actual costs to budgeted distributions are made based on the Substitute System's Employee Schedule and Certification forms, if applicable;
- 4) If the cost comparisons show the differences between budgeted and actual costs are less than ten percent, adjustments made to costs charged to Federal awards as a result of the cost reconciliation are recorded annually;
- 5) If the cost comparisons show the differences between budgeted and actual costs are ten percent or more, adjustments made to costs charged to Federal awards as a result of the cost reconciliation are recorded quarterly;
- 6) The budget estimates or other distribution percentages are revised at least quarterly, if necessary, to reflect changed circumstances.

The Robert Lee ISD Business Manager is responsible for performing the cost reconciliation and adjustments.

18.4 Job Descriptions

- (1) An integral component of an adequate financial management system is the development and maintenance of records documenting the duties and responsibilities of personnel and the employee's acknowledgement of their understanding of their duties and responsibilities.
- (2) Employee job descriptions are signed and dated by the employee as acknowledgement that the employee has full knowledge of their duties and responsibilities. Job descriptions are also signed and dated by the employee's immediate supervisor.
- (3) Employee job descriptions must be current. Employee job descriptions are updated as new assignments are made. The Robert Lee ISD business office will monitor job descriptions to ensure they are kept up-to-date and that the job descriptions accurately and completely describe the work performed by the specific position. Job descriptions for positions that are split-funded are reviewed quarterly, at a minimum, to ensure the job description remains current.
- (4) Employee job descriptions are updated as new assignments are made.
- (5) The Human Resources staff will monitor job descriptions to ensure they are kept up-to-date and that the job descriptions accurately and completely describe the work performed by the specific position. Job descriptions for positions that are split-funded should be reviewed

quarterly by the supervisor, at a minimum, to ensure the job description remains current.

- (6) Employee job descriptions for personnel paid from Federal funds will include all program or cost objectives under which the employee works. Supervisors will ensure that job descriptions and duties are specific to the particular grant program and clearly identify the functions and programs they benefit, including the fund source(s) from which the position is compensated
- (7) The Program Administrator and/or employee' supervisor will ensure the job descriptions aligns the activities of the position to the program goals of the fund source and ties the source of funds to the activity. Human Resources will assist as necessary.
- (8) If a position benefits multiple cost objectives or programs, the job description will clearly define each program, function, and/or fund source and clearly identify and distinguish the duties and responsibilities for each respective program, function, and/or fund source.
- (9) If a position benefits a single cost objective or program, the job description will clearly indicate the employee is assigned 100% to the program. If a position that benefits a single cost objective is funded through multiple sources, a sentence will be added to the job description stating that the position is supported by a single cost objective even though its funding is split among multiple sources.
- (10) If a position has administrative duties, the job description will clearly delineate the administrative activities and identify the percentage of administrative activities compared to program activities.

18.5 Employee Exits

All employees who separate service from the district are required to submit and exit interview prior to final compensation.

Any staff member who separates from employment with the LEA will be ineligible to attend any conference, workshop, or convention paid out of any LEA funds, when such attendance occurs after the separation date.

Any staff member who separates from employment with the LEA and attends a conference, workshop, or convention paid out of any LEA funds, when such attendance occurs after the separation date, will be liable for the costs of the conference, workshop, or convention and will not be reimbursed for such costs by the LEA.

The Robert Lee ISD business office is responsible for ensuring compliance with this requirement.

18.6 Human Resources Policies

Personnel compensation guidelines can be found in the business office.

Position Control

The LEA utilizes internal accounting records for each employee position:

- a) Request to Post Position: Responsibility of campus principals.
- b) Advertisement of Position: Responsibility of administrative assistant.
- c) Personnel Recommendation: Responsibility of campus principal.
- d) Employee Job Description: Responsibility of campus principal/superintendent.
- e) Employee Data Sheet: Responsibility of personnel department.
- f) Payroll Authorization Responsibility of personnel department.
- g) Annual Employee Salary Information Confirmation: Responsibility of personnel department.
- h) Transfer Form to move from one position or department to another: Responsibility of campus principals/superintendent.

The Robert Lee ISD business office ensures all wage changes and annual salaries and deductions are accurately tracked and recorded. The Robert Lee ISD Business Manager ensures employee salaries are allocated to the proper general ledger accounts. The personnel department title ensures payroll taxes and deductions are properly calculated.

19.0 Record Keeping

19.1 Record Retention

The LEA maintains all records that fully show (1) the amount of funds under the grant or subgrant; (2) how the subgrantee uses those funds; (3) the total cost of each project; (4) the share of the total cost of each project provided from other sources; (5) other records to facilitate an effective audit; and (6) other records to show compliance with federal program requirements. 34 CFR §\$76.730-.731 and §\$75.730-.731. The LEA also maintains records of significant project experiences and results. 34 CFR §75.732. These records and accounts must be retained and made available for programmatic or financial audit.

19.2 Records Management

The Superintendent is responsible for naming a district Records Management Officer who is responsible for documenting and carrying out a records management and maintenance system for the district. The system established by the Records Management Officer shall manage federal financial records shall be managed in accordance with EDGAR, 2 CFR 200.330, et seq, and the RLISD Local Records Retention Schedule, which is established by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission. Records of grant-funded financial transactions will be maintained for a period of at least seven years after either the final expenditure report due date (for formula grants such as Title I, IDEA-B, or Perkins CTE) or the last day of the grant period (for federal discretionary and competitive grants).

The U.S. Department of Education is authorized to recover any federal funds misspent within 5 years before the receipt of a program determination letter. 34 CFR §81.31(c). Consequently, the LEA retain records for a minimum of five (5) years from the date on which the final Financial Status Report is submitted, unless otherwise notified in writing to extend the retention period by the awarding agency, cognizant agency for audit, oversight agency for audit, or cognizant agency for indirect costs. However, if any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the record retention period, the records will be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 2 CFR §200.333.

All records for Robert Lee ISD are kept on site with electronic off-site system through Region XV.

State Law Regarding Records Retention

The Texas State Library and Archives Commission records retention schedules are available at: www.tsl.state.tx.us/slrm/recordspubs/localretention.html

The Government Code, Section 411.158, provides that the Texas State Library and Archives Commission shall issue records retention schedules for each type of local government, including a schedule for records common to all types of local government. The law provides further that each schedule must state the retention period prescribed by Federal or State law, rule of court, or regulation for a record for which a period is prescribed; and prescribe retention periods for all other records, which periods have the same effect as if prescribed by law after the records retention schedule is adopted as a rule of the Commission.

The retention period for a record applies to the record regardless of the medium in which it is maintained. Some records listed in the retention schedule are maintained electronically in many offices, but electronically stored data used to create in any manner a record or the functional equivalent of a record as described in the retention schedules must be retained, along with the hardware and software necessary to access the data, for the retention period assigned to the record, unless backup copies of the data generated from electronic storage are retained in paper or on microfilm for the retention period. This includes electronic mail (email), websites, and electronic publications.

The use of social media applications may create public records. Any content (messages, posts, photographs, videos, etc.) created or received using a social media application may be considered records and should be managed appropriately. The retention of social media records is based on content and function. Local governments will need to consult the relevant records retention schedule for the minimum retention periods.

Unless otherwise stated, the retention period for a record is in calendar years from the date of its

creation. The retention period applies only to an official record as distinct from convenience or working copies created for informational purposes. Where several copies are maintained, each local government should decide which shall be the official record and in which of its divisions or departments it will be maintained. Local governments in their records management programs should establish policies and procedures to provide for the systematic disposal of copies.

A local government record whose retention period has expired may not be destroyed if any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, public information request, administrative review, or other action involving the record is initiated; its destruction shall not occur until the completion of the action and the resolution of all issues that arise from it.

A local government record whose retention period expires during any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, public information request, administrative review, or other action involving the record may not be destroyed until the completion of the action and the resolution of all issues that arise from it.

If a record described in the retention schedule is maintained in a bound volume of a type in which pages were not meant to be removed, the retention period, unless otherwise stated, dates from the date of last entry.

If two or more records listed in the retention schedule are maintained together by a local government and are not severable, the combined record must be retained for the length of time of the component with the longest retention period. A record whose minimum retention period on the retention schedule has not yet expired and is less than permanent may be disposed of if it has been so badly damaged by fire, water, or insect or rodent infestation as to render it unreadable, or if portions of the information in the record have been so thoroughly destroyed that remaining portions are unintelligible. If the retention period for the record is permanent in the retention schedule, authority to dispose of the damaged record must be obtained from the Director and Librarian of the Texas State Library and Archives Commission. A Request for Authority to Destroy Unscheduled Records (FORM SLR 501) should be used for this purpose.

19.3 Collection and Transmission of Records

All records are kept on site through an off-site system through Region XV.

The LEA's records management system establishes a records retention schedule and determines which records are active and should be retained in office space, which records are inactive and should be moved to storage, which records have served their usefulness and may be destroyed, which records are confidential or sensitive and require security measures to restrict access, which records are essential and require backup protection, and which records demonstrate compliance with legal requirements.

In developing the LEA's records retention schedule, the superintendent will ensure it is consistent with the applicable minimum retention schedules adopted by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission, i.e., Local Schedule GR – Records Common to All Governments, Local Schedule EL - Records of Elections and Voter Registration, Local Schedule TX – Records of Property Taxation, and Local Schedule SD – Records for Public School Districts. 13 TAC (Texas Administrative Code) 7.125.

Note: The Texas State Library and Archives Commission records retention schedules are available at: www.tsl.state.tx.us/slrm/recordspubs/localretention.html

In addition, records that are not listed on the Texas State Library and Archives Commission records retention schedule, but are retained for administrative value, are included in the records management plan, with a retention period identified for each record type.

The LEA may not dispose of a record listed in the applicable retention schedule prior to the expiration of its retention period. The LEA's records control schedule may not set a retention period that is less than that established for the record in the applicable schedule. Original paper records may be disposed of prior to the expiration of their minimum retention periods if they have been microfilmed or electronically stored pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Code, Chapter 204 or Chapter 205, as applicable, and rules of the Texas State Library and Archives Commission adopted under those chapters. Actual disposal of such records is subject to the policies and procedures of the LEA's records management program.

Even if the legal retention period has expired for a record, the record will not be destroyed if one of the following exists:

- a) The subject matter of the record is known to be in litigation;
- b) The record is subject to a pending request for disclosure under the Open Records Act;
- c) There is an outstanding request to inspect and review the record under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA);
- d) The record is subject to a pending audit by a Federal or State granting agency or subgrantor

agency;

e) Questions remain unresolved from a conducted audit until audit findings are solved.

The LEA maintains and preserves original records and/or in electronic format for convenience use. Records stored on microfiche will comply with the requirements established in the Texas State Library's Local Government Bulletin A, Microfilming Standards and Procedures. Records stored on electronic or magnetic media must follow the requirements established in Local Government Bulletin B, Electronic Records Standards and Procedures.

Active records are stored in the secured locations at each campus and the central office Active records are records that are current or accessed frequently. Inactive records are records that are accessed infrequently or not at all. Inactive records are stores on site. The records retention schedule will identify all records in storage and their location.

Any person who knowingly or intentionally violates the specific rules for the destruction of records established by the Texas Government Records Act violates the law. According to Section 202.001 of the Texas Government Records Act (Local Government Code 202.001), records may be destroyed if:

- a) The record is listed on a records control schedule accepted for filing by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission (the Commission) and its retention period has expired or it has been microfilmed or stored electronically in accordance with established requirements;
- b) The record appears on a list of obsolete records approved by the Commission;
- c) A destruction request is filed with and approved by the Commission (for a record not listed on an approved control schedule);
- d) The record destruction or obliteration is directed by an expunction order issued by a district court pursuant to State law;
- e) The record is defined as exempt from scheduling or filing requirements by rules adopted by the Commission or listed as exempt in a records retention schedule issued by the Commission.

Records may be destroyed by burning, shredding, pulping, burial in a landfill or by sale or donation for recycling purposes, subject to the following exceptions:

- a) Records to which public access is restricted under Chapter 552, Government Code, or other State law may be destroyed only by burning, pulping, or shredding;
- b) An LEA that sells or donates records for recycling purposes must establish procedures for ensuring that the records are rendered unrecognizable as local government records by the recycler;
- c) The Commission may approve other methods of destruction that render the records unrecognizable as local government records.

Robert Lee ISD updates LEA records on an annual basis. Any records scheduled for destruction are pulled and destroyed by Robert Lee ISD. No records are destroyed without the approval of the Robert Lee ISD Superintendent.

For special education records, a notice will be published in the local paper notifying the public of the intent to destroy records, specifying the date range of special education records that will be destroyed within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the notice. No confidential information is published. Documents will only be released to the student named on the record.

If record retention schedules prescribed by the Texas State Library and Archives Commission indicate a retention period that differs from the Federal requirements, the more restrictive retention period will be followed. Since Title IV of the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) – Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) has no statute of limitations, all records are maintained for that grant program.

19.4 Access to Records

The LEA provides the awarding agency, Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the pass-through entity, or any of their authorized representatives the right of access to any documents, papers, or other records of the LEA which are pertinent to the Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also includes timely and reasonable access to the LEA's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents.

19.5 Privacy

All personnel information is secured through password-accessible software. All personnel information is protected under the laws and regulations of FERPA.

20.0 Self-Monitoring and Audit Resolution

20.1 Program Evaluation

The Robert Lee ISD Superintendent will monitor Federal grant-supported activities to assure compliance with applicable Federal requirements and to assure that performance goals are being achieved. Actual accomplishments will be compared to the objectives of the program.

Activities for monitoring and evaluating program performance include, but are not limited to:

- Interviews with campus administrators;
- Collaboration with regional Education Service Center staff for training, technical assistance, and consultative services;
- Review of applicable data;
- Leadership team meetings on a regular basis to review program activities

20.2 Monitoring Implementation of Written Policies and Procedures

The LEA will self-monitor implementation of their written policies and procedures on an annual basis.

20.3 Audit Resolution

The LEA will review the results of audit and monitoring visits and implement corrective actions in a timely manner.

21.0 Questions to Consider When Determining Allowability of Cost with Federal Funds

Fiscal and program staff should refer to this section for a useful framework when performing an analysis of allowability. In order to determine whether federal funds may be used to purchase a specific cost, it is helpful to ask the following questions:

- Is the proposed cost allowable under the relevant program?
 - o Am I familiar with the program-specific statutes and regulations?
 - Have I reviewed the Program Guidelines issued by TEA for this particular grant program?
- Is the proposed cost consistent with program-specific fiscal rules?
 - o Does the program have a supplement, not supplant rule?
 - o Are there other program-specific fiscal rules that affect this cost item?
- Is the proposed cost consistent with an approved program plan and budget?
 - Have I reviewed the applicable program plan?
 - o Is the cost item budgeted in our local budget or does it need to be added?

- Does the cost require specific approval from TEA?
- o Is the cost item budgeted in the grant application or does it need to be added?
- o If the cost was in the grant application, was the cost approved by TEA?
- Is the proposed cost consistent with specific conditions imposed on the grant (if applicable)?
 - Have I reviewed the NOGA for the grant award to determine specific terms and conditions?
- Is the proposed cost consistent with EDGAR?
 - Is the proposed cost item reasonable?
 - Is it a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation of the LEA?
 - Is it a type generally recognized as necessary for the proper and efficient performance of the specific federal program?
 - Are sound procurement practices, such as arms-length bargaining, full and open competition standards followed?
 - Are you significantly deviating from your locally established practices and policies?
 - Is the price consistent with market prices for comparable goods or services for the geographic area?
 - Did you perform a cost/price analysis?
 - Did you perform a lease vs purchase analysis?
 - Did you consider the use of federal excess and surplus property in lieu of purchasing new equipment or property?
 - Is this the minimum amount I need to spend to meet my need?
 - Is this the "Cadillac" version of what I really need?
 - Does it pass the prudent person test?
 - Is the proposed cost item necessary?
 - Is it needed for the proper and efficient performance of the grant program?
 - Does it address program-specific goals and objectives?
 - Is it aligned with identified needs based on results and findings from a needs assessment?
 - Is it aligned with identified needs based on program data?
 - Have you reviewed the Campus Improvement Plan and/or District Improvement Plan and Comprehensive Needs Assessment?
 - Is there an educational benefit associated with the cost?
 - Is it identified in your program plan?
 - Is it identified in the budget and grant application?
 - Do I really need this or is it just nice to have?
 - Do I have the capacity to use what I am purchasing?
 - Would this be a duplicative item of something we already have?

- If I were asked to defend this purchase, would I be able to?
- o Is the proposed cost item allocable to the federal award?
 - Is the cost incurred specifically for the federal program?
 - Will the program benefit in proportion to the funds charged to the program?
- Ones the proposed cost item conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the terms and conditions of the federal award?
 - Have you reviewed the NOGA, if applicable, to determine terms and conditions of the award?
- o Is the proposed cost item consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both federally-financed and other activities of the LEA?
- o Is the proposed cost item accorded consistent treatment?
 - Have you determined whether it would be a direct cost or indirect cost and whether the determination for this type of cost is consistent with like costs in like circumstances?
- Will the accounting treatment of the proposed cost item conform with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)?
- Will the proposed cost item be used as a match or cost-share?
- Have I reviewed the Selected Items of Cost in EDGAR?
- Are any credits being extended that should reduce the amount being allocated to the federal award?
- O Do I have a system in place to adequately document the entire procurement cycle of the cost item?
- O Do I have a system in place to ensure the expenditure occurs during the grant program performance period?
- O I have a system in place to ensure that once it is purchased and received, personnel who will use the cost item are made aware of its fund source and intended purpose and beneficiaries?
- Are there any State or local rules applicable to this cost item that are more restrictive than federal rules?

22.0 State Programs – Program Allocations

State Program Allocations are estimated and paid to school districts through the state Foundation School Program by the Texas Education Agency (TEA). Rules governing the use and expenditures of these funds are provided in TEA's Financial Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG), Modules 1 and 9.

A percentage of each state allotment must be spent on "direct" expenditures for the given special program. The current percentages and program intent code (PIC) are noted below by program:

- 1. Special Education 52% PIC 23;
- 2. Career & Technical Education 58% PIC 22;
- 3. Gifted & Talented Education 55% PIC 21;
- 4. State Compensatory Education (SCE) 52% PIC 24-30 (except 25& 27); and
- 5. Bilingual/ESL Education 52% PIC 25

During the budget process, the estimated state allotment is calculated based on the LPE (Legislative Planning Estimate) column prior year TEA Summary of Finance. The estimated state program allotments are computed by the RLISD Superintendent.

The Superintendent is responsible for programmatic compliance in each respective program. Programmatic compliance shall include, but not limited to: program eligibility, program design, instructional delivery, entry/exit procedures, professional development and certification.

The Business Manager is responsible for the financial compliance in each of these special programs. Financial compliance shall include, but not limited to: budgeting development & monitoring, approval of expenditures, financial reporting to TEA, financial audit and compliance reporting.

As part of the budget adoption process, the Business Manager verifies that the proposed budget for each of the allocation and Program Intent Codes listed above includes appropriations of *no less* than the percentages stated above as required direct expenditures for each special program. [If the District does not budget to compliance, it may not spend to compliance.]

Throughout the fiscal year and at the end of the fiscal year, the Business Manager shall calculate the periodic and final spend percentages for each special program allocation. These calculations are used to determine compliance. In the event that direct program expenditures fall below the mandated percentages, the Business Manager shall work with the Superintendent to ensure that the deficit amount is corrected.

23.0 Legal Authorities and Helpful Resources

The following documents contain relevant grants management requirements. Staff should be familiar with these materials and consult them when making decisions related to the federal grant.

- Education Department General Administrative Regulations (EDGAR)
 - http://www2.ed.gov/policy/fund/reg/edgarReg/edgar.html
- Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Part 200)

- http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ccccf77e01c9e6d4b3a377815f411704&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5
- USDE's Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Part 3474)
 - http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ccccf77e01c9e6d4b3a377815f411704&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr3474_main_02.tpl
- Federal program statutes, regulations, and guidance
 - http://www.ed.gov/
- State regulations, rules, and policies
- LEA regulations, rules, and policies

24.0 Roles and Responsibilities

EDGAR Manual Section	Responsible Officer	EDGAR Citation
2.0 Organization	Business Manager, Superintendent	
3.1 Implementation	Business Manager, Superintendent	2 CFR 200.303
3.2 Authorities	Business Manager, Superintendent	2 CFR 200
3.3 Applying for Grants	Business Manager	
3.5 Program and Financial Provisions and Assurances	Business Manager	
3.6 Fund Identification Requirements and Standards	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.302
3.7 Records Management	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.330
3.8 Risk Mitigation	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.205&207
4.0 System Controls for Payment	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.305
5.1 Purchasing Procedures	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.318-320
5.2 Conflict of Interest	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.318
5.3 Contract Development and Oversight	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.318 2 CF200.321, 2 CFR 200.323, 2 CFR 200 Appendix II

5.4 Debarment	Business Manager	
5.5 Lobbying Certification	Business Manager	
5.5 Procurement Thresholds	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.320
6.0 Cost Principles	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.403-405
6.1 Obligation and Use of Funds	Business Manager	34 CFR 75.707
7.0 Federally-Funded Positions	Business Manager	
7.1 Time and Effort	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.430
8.0 Property Standards	Maintenance	
8.1 Capitalization Policy	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.12
8.2 Acquisition Cost	Business Manager	2 CFR 200.2

24.0 APPENDIXES

Appendix A: Organizational Chart

Name	Position	
Aaron Hood	Superintendent	

Robin Allen	Business Manager, Payroll and Insurance
Shanna Freeman	PEIMS Coordinator

Appendix B: Chart of Accounts

Current Year Grants

- 211Title I, Part A
- 212 Title I, Part C (SSA with Region XV ESC)
- 224 IDEA B Formula/SSA
- 240 National School Lunch
- 244 Title I, Part C Carl D Perkins CTE (SSA with Region XV ESC)
- 255 Title II, Part A Principal & Teacher Training & Recruitment
- Title III (SSA with Region XV ESC)

Appendix C: List of Business Office Staff

Name	Position	Phone	Email
Aaron Hood	Superintendent	325-453-4555	aaron.hood@rlisd.net
Robin Allen	Business Manager, Payroll and Insurance	325-453-4555	robin.allen@rlisd.net
Cynthia Dillard	PEIMS Coordinator	325-453-4555	cynthia.dillard@rlisd.net

Appendix [D]: Sample of Periodic (Semi-Annual) Certification form

Robert Lee Independent School District

"Students Today - Leaders Tomorrow"

Aaron Hood Superintendent/Elementary Principal

David O'Dell Secondary Principal

1323 HAMILTON

ROBERT LEE, TEXAS 76945

(325) 453-4555 Fax (325) 453-2326

Certification of Sole Program Assignment

[Semester]	
[School Year]	
[Teacher]	
To Whom it May Concern:	
I hereby certify that I have utilized 100% of my time so program activities as required during the period [seme	
Teacher Name	Date
Supervisor Name	Date